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| etter from
the Chairman

Mane
Cergueda
Donadeu

After a grim start to the year, when COVID-19 rampaged
through family Christmas celebrations, over the course of
2022 the pandemic gradually receded. The vaccines took
effect and, as the months went by, huge progress was made in
the return to normality. The shameful invasion of Ukraine by
Russia pushed the latest COVID-19 variants and strains into
the background.

The armed conflict (still ongoing) affected areas of great
importance to global stability and strained relations between
Russia, the European Union and the United States, while also
redefining the involvement of the Asian countries.

Besides the geopolitical upheaval, the war also affected
countries’ economies and citizens' pockets by giving rise to
inflation that prompted successive interest rate hikes. In terms
of activity, the trend in 2022 was downward, leading to a
severely deteriorated situation at year-end as a result of the
uncertainty caused by the war and relations between countries,
rising inflation and restrictive financial conditions. In the end,
global economic growth stabilised at a notable 3.4%.

The behaviour of the financial markets, for all asset classes,
was also extremely complex, leading most investors to choose
liquidity, as few other options to make a return on their
investments were to be found. The falls in the main markets
were widespread and deep, with the MSCI ACWI Global falling
by -19.97%, the U.S. S&P Index closing at -19.4%, the
Europe Stoxx Index dropping -14.4% and the China Shenzhen
Index down -21.9%.

In fixed income the declines were equally steep, with the 10-
year US Treasury bond closing down -17.4% for the year and
the 10-year German bond losing -22.1%. The performance of
the government bonds of Spain (-24%), Italy (-27%), Portugal
(-24%) and Greece (-25%) was even worse.

So this was the context in which we were to carry out the first
year of our 2022-2024 strategic plan.

In an environment full of uncertainties, we continued to pursue
our goal of consolidating our position as a major private
banking player in the countries in which we are present.
Building on the pillars that represent the essence of our
business, namely, specialisation, proximity, dynamism and
professional excellence, we ended the year with growth.

Thanks to the concerted efforts of the 1,257 professionals
who make up the Group's team, we ended 2022 with total
revenue of 34,300 million euros, total assets under
management of 31,247 million euros and profit of 30
million euros.

Moreover, our business remains as robust as ever, with a ROE
of 5% and a ROTE of 11.07%. Similarly, efficient resource
management brought our own funds to 606.8 million euros,
lifting our capital and liquidity ratios above the levels required
by the Basel Il accords and above the European average.

The Tier 1 capital ratio (phased-in) thus reached 15.7% on a
consolidated basis, the liquidity coverage ratio climbed to
234%, well above the minimum of 100%, and the non-
performing loans (NPL) ratio fell to 1.7%.
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On the rating front, Fitch raised Andbank’s outlook to stable,
while confirming its long-term credit rating of “BBB" citing a
foreseeable improvement “in the entity's earnings and
profitability, supported by higher private banking volumes and
its strengthened capacity to absorb credit risks”. For the third
year running, Andbank was also the highest rated bank
in Andorra.

In its report, Fitch acknowledged Andbank’s “satisfactory”
capitalisation, sound operating profitability, asset quality,
strong reserve coverage and loan collateralisation. It also
highlighted Andbank’s international presence (on a larger scale
than Andorran peers) and its adequate presence in Andorra.

Andbank continues to do business in the 11 countries in which
it is present, with particularly significant contributions from
Andorra, Spain, Monaco and Luxembourg. In 2022 we also
continued to carry out corporate transactions, most notably in
Brazil, with the sale of our banking license to Creditas, a digital
financial solutions platform. In Brazil we continue to operate
as a broker dealer and fund manager.

Similarly, in Israel we signed an agreement with wealth
management firm Clarity Capital Group to supplement the
investment fund management services we offer through Sigma
Investment House. This business combination has created a
major new player in the Israeli asset management industry.

Through a transaction carried out in Spain at the end of the
year, Mylnvestor, a neobank owned by Andbank, El Corte
Inglés, AXA and a number of family offices, began to operate
independently and was registered as a bank. At the same time,
in Andorra, we launched Myandbank, one of our latest
technological initiatives, of which we are very proud and which
we expect to see grow.

After more than 90 years, Andbank, as a group, continues to
show dynamism and traction in positioning itself as a leader in
the private banking business. In addition to all the corporate
transactions, the team was expanded, additional private
banking offices were opened (mainly in Andorra and Spain), and
our enthusiasm as members of this great family continued
to grow.

After almost a century in business, we continue to innovate,
proposing innovative solutions tailored to present
circumstances and customers' needs, generating new business
lines and commercial agreements. Our goal is to continue to

grow, not at any cost but in a measured, rational way, always
keeping the focus on the customer.

What makes all this possible is the daily effort of the members
of the Andbank team, whose professional excellence and
dedication enables us to advance steadily in the right direction
and whom | would like to thank for their constancy, continuous
improvement and dedication.

What gives us the most pride, however—and naturally so—is
our striving to give back to society part of the value we
generate, above all by supporting cancer research, which is one
of the core themes of our corporate social responsibility
programme. In 2022, through our Global Sustainable Impact
(GSI) fund, we were proud to have the honour of collaborating
with the research projects carried out by the Pediatric Cancer
Center at Sant Joan de Déu Hospital, with the FERO
Foundation, and with the CRIS Foundation against Cancer, as
well as other organisations that support disadvantaged groups.

We also contributed to various initiatives aimed at supporting
Ukrainian society and serving other serious humanitarian
causes. At the same time, we are taking steps to make our
activity more efficient and environmentally responsible. In this
age we live in, with so many social, humanitarian, health and
climate challenges to be met, an institution such as Andbank
must do all it can to make this world a better place.

We hope that the high personal and professional standards we
strive to exemplify in our daily work, along with our passion to
care for others, will continue to earn us the trust of our clients,
to whom on behalf of the Andbank Group's shareholders and
Board of Directors | convey our sincerest thanks.

Letter from the Chairman
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INDEPENDENT ALUDITOR™S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Andorra Bane Agrlcal Reig, 44,

Oplrian

We hive audiles the accompanyicg consol cated NMnascizl slatements of Andoma Banc agricol
Reig, S8 irne Paropih ang other compan:es oomeposing the &ndlank Growp (the Graga), wheeh
compeise the consolidated stalement of dicancid osition as st 31 December 201, the
tonsfldated smazemenr of Incame, statemert of chaqges In the contclidzeed net eguiy and
cosglidated cash Flow slatement for the vear then ended, and netes to the cansobdatad llaangal
stetere ents, intwding 2 sum hay of ageiliaet accounzeag pol.coes.

In pur opigtion, tne accompanying consolidated ina~cizl s1atentents prazen fairky, o all materal
respects, the conzolidated equity and candobdsted finame al pos-line of (ke Group a5 at 23
Cretember 3023, amd iy tamsolidaned resuits and its conso [daved cash fows for the year thea
gnded cn arLao-fance weth Inlernatsenzl Financal Aegoring Standacds as zdopied by the
Exrrougeear Uriern [EL-'FREA) @nd coicardinyly adop led by &nddrea JAndgrran IFA5s5)

Basis for QOpinion

We conducted pur audit in accordance with 1~terratlenal Standards on Auditing (I$Ash. Owr
respansrilities weder trose stamdard s are fuckher desorilasd w o the Aoditer's Responnibilities for
I Arsit of the Consodidolted Finannal Starements sectiom of ou- regorl.,

We zra indepeadert of the Grovp In accardance with the enfical reguire meats than are apalicable
to our Jgwdin of the coessold#ied lirandal satements persrant o the Code of Fthiss for
Professianal Accguntanis of the International Evncs Standzrds Board for Acccuntant {IESBA
Code al Ethicsp and havie fSuhilled gur other eirigal responsiblities n accordance with these
RO fBrmE LS.

We believe that the audit evidence we hawve obtained is sufficient and appropriata to provide a
basis for carapinlen.

"L R ST e e o] P A FREOT 3 R ML S Ay s et Lt o T B L s 1 A S R ED | R e
2=rehiwwa czmnemrai—myd L Lk, Mg e Hec 1 Bal g Trasds f ALRTCA oo 0
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Othar Informat|ion

Tha Parant’s directors are resgonsible for the ather information, The otherinformation comprsas
thr consalidoted aenual report for 2027 vnder the terme esteblished in Artiche 99 of Law 2572018,
ol 20 Docernber, on soleeriy, liguidey and priedonng) sugerssicn of banking enblics and
investment frms, but does ol g adie the congs lidased | nannal darements amd oo auditor's
repont thereon.

Qur apinlas an the contolidated fitancizl staterrents coes noet cover bne onher Infore ¥2.an 104
we do nat express any lorm ob conces on that Srovides a degree of assorance tneraan,

fn connection with ow geditof the consol.dated financial staterrents, our respons bilily is 1o raad
the ather infermatlon and, in ezing 50, coasger whetho: the other wfermaton na mazeslally
insansletent with the consolldaed findrcia’ stazemennt of aur wnow/edge cbtalned o the acelr
or othersse appears to be materiglly misstated, If, based or the work we Fave pesfopmed, we
conclude that there i< 3 mater-al missrarencent of mus ether leformaton, we are requeired 2o
repert that fact. We Rave nolhing le repor in this regand.

Rezponslbilltles of the Directors and of the Audit and Compllance Committes for the
Consolidated Financial Statamerts

The dirgctprs of sine Pare-1t are responscblo for prepdreng e acoompacpeng comsaldaled fingnoad
statcments 5o khal they present fairly the Group's consalidated equity, consalidated financial
paosiion and consciidated resulss im acoerdanct with [Mlernaisonal Finascis! Reportny Shanda-da
25 adopicd by the Eirgpean Lindgn (EU-IF352] 2nd conzurrenty acozied by Aodgrea {Andorigm
IFR%s), and for <wch antemnal control as the dradlors delermine is eecessany to enable the
prega-ation of comsolidaved fi-ancal stavements et are free fom emakedal msstaes: mil,.
whetlines due o irgad or eregr

In preparing Lae consotidatgd financipl stalements, the directors of the Pareat are responsitrle For
255a55ing e Growp's abiticy o Continue as a go £ concern, dieclas ng, a5 apphicable, reaters
refated S ponrig concem and wiong the going comtens bais al acoswnueg undeic Br e directors of
the Parent #ither nlend 192 lizeidate Lre Growp or to cease operdtons, or have e nealistic
alternative but to do o,

The Audrt Corrmittes of the Farent 15 respanslbla for everseelng tha process invalsed n thi
preparation and prasentation of the consdlidated financial stateme nts.



Audilor's Respansibllithes far the Audlt of the Consolidated Financlal 5talaments

O obyeclives are o aitzin reasocable assurasce aooul whelher the consoldated firancial
statecmicrns 35 3 wehole 200 freg frem matord' wossiat oanend, whorher dwe 1o Trapd or error, and
e issue an auditor's report Inal indudes gt cpinion.

Rearonab'e assurance s a Hgh level of astarance bl s not 3 guaramies that 2= audit sanducred
in apcord pnce wth 1545 will ahvays detecl, a malerial misstztersont whan b axsts, bosstatemenss
L&n aress froen fras o or creor and are cons dored ~akeral , indead wally or i cshe agaeegane, thoy
o d eragonativ Be exgcled 10 mfluense e scofcmi dizisiony al ysers Jaken gn tha basis ol
these carzol dates finanoiai stalemants

A Ferpher de seripnion of our respon Sbilties for the 2udit of the consolidated financial statements
is included In Appendis | be this auditor's report. Thie desceiption forms part of our auditor's
repart.

DELONTTE ANDOARRA ALUDITORS | ASGESSORS, 5L

f
Alvarg Quintana
30 March 2023
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appendix | to our aud/tor's report

Further to the infgrmation contaated in aue apditoe's repewt, in 1hils Appendly we inehade gar
responsibilizes in relation ta the audit of the sonsolidated financal statements.,

Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audil of the Consalidated Financial 5tataments

Ly part of an aodit In accerdance with 158s, we evercise professional judgemment and mamntaln
professional sceptlecan theoughout the audit. We aluo:
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Ideatify and assest fhe ricks ol material relsstatement of the conso'wated linanzial
statemenls, whethor due 1o dipsd o oerrar, desegne aed perfosm gt progudurss
rosparcive lo those risks, and obtaln awdit evidence that is sulhrient and appropniate 1o
pravedle 2 masis for our opn:zn, Tae risk of not detecting a mazerial misscasemont rosubting
frars Praud 1% higher than far one feiciing brem ereas, 85 fraud fep et 2allesion,
forpory, intenticnal omisicns, marepreseniations, 0o she overnide of inteanal cartral,
Oatzin on uaderstand.ag of intern gl comtrel releyart t& the gudil in order to £os gooacdit
proceda-es tha: are approphzte e the orcuncstances, but not for the porpose of
pxpress. g b gparign an the effecyweneis of the Graup's meernal eceteal.

Eveluste the appropriotencss of iccounling pollcs wied and the rossonableness of
gooounting o5 matey and refated d solosuses mads by the Parent™s diderlgrs,

Conclude on the aparopr-steness of the ug by She Pargat’s di-ectons of e goog oomgern
basls of accounting and, Based on the audit evideace chtainegd, whether a materal
uncortarty exsis related 0o eveats or coaditions thal may cast significant dou st on cne
Graup's ablbiby bo continue 25 3 Reing consern. If we conclede that a manedial o cemasty
exisls, wa are regu. e 1o draw ailention in owr guditor's reposl je Lhe relabed desdosures
In the canschdates financal stobements or, - suck dieclosures are inadegueate, to madify
duf gpinian, Gur concms.oms are based ¢ ke aud t evidence cbtained up to the date of
aur auditor’s repert. koweuer, Arturg gvanks Gr fond i ns mdy £ s the Group e crat
10 CONNUE 35 3 0N {onCorm,

Evzluate thar syerall prosernation, jiroctuce pnd ecatent ol thie ecensaldated finarcial
statermnents, ieclading the divclgsures, and wheshes tae consolic aled ina~cial statemanis
regreson: be uncenylng transacoons and events no 3 manner that achicees faar
precenlabion.

Obtaln sufficlent approgriaze evidence regarolng tne Infarmatlon of the enttes or
busimess activilies within the Growp to express an opin on on the Groee's consalidazed
figwymzial LtatEments. We are resconsizle for the cirectoon, Supert.on and 2 mforsnnce
of the Group andit, We remain solety responsible far our audit opinkan.



Wi ot rudicate with the aud t Cammettee of the Farent regard ng, amang othor macters, the
ptan-ied scope and Uming of the awdit and sipn ficant avdit Yedings, including aey © poiflcan:
defichmncics w interwil coatrol that we dentfy duriig our aadin,

W a'so provide the Audit Commutier of the Farent with a statement that we Fove corrplied with
rebevant ellcdi reguitersents, oeclodmg those regarding  independenze, and we haar

commeunizated wilh jr te regert on all matters thal may reasonal’y be tought 1o oo pardise 4ur
indes:endedee, and where agpllcabe, oo the related infeguards,
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INDEX FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Nature, activities and composition
2 Basis of presentation for the consolidated annual accounts

a. Compliance with IFRS as adopted by the Andorran Government

b. Basis of presentation for the consolidated annual accounts

c. Comparative information

d. Changes in accounting criteria and correction of errors

e. Functional and presentation currency

f. Relevant accounting estimates and relevant assumptions and
judgements when applying accounting policies

g. New requirements of the IFRS introduced in 2022

h. Recent IFRS pronouncements

Relevant accounting principles and valuation standards
Distribution of profit
Cash, cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

N o o b~ W

Non-trading financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
10 Financial assets at amortised cost

11 Derivatives - Hedge accounting and Fair value changes of the hedged
items in portfolio hedge of interest rate risk.

12 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

13 Tangible assets



14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
58

34
35

36
37
38
56
40
41

Intangible assets

Tax assets and liabilities

Other assets and liabilities

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Provisions

Capital and reserves

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Off-balance sheet exposures

Third party transactions

Interest income and expenses

Dividend income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities
Exchange differences, net

Other operating income/expenses
Administrative expenses

Provisions or reversals of provisions

Impairment or reversal of impairment on financial assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss

Impairment or reversal of impairment on non-financial assets

Profit or loss from non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale not qualifying as discontinued operations.

Balances and transactions with related parties
Taxation

Risk management

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Events after the reporting period

Compliance with legislation

APPENDIX

Appendix |: Andbank Group companies

Appendix Il: Annual banking report
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Statement of financial position

ASSETS
Cash, cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits (note 5)
Cash on hand
Cash balances at central banks
Other demand deposits
Financial assets held for trading (note 6)
Derivatives
Equity instruments
Debt securities
Non-trading financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss (note 7)
Equity instruments
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (note 8)
Debt securities
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 9)
Equity instruments
Debt securities
Financial assets at amortised cost (note 10)
Debt securities
Loans and advances
Central banks
Credit institutions
Customers

Derivatives - Hedge accounting (note 11)

Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of interest rate risk (note 11)

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (note 12)
Assets under insurance and reinsurance contracts
Tangible assets (note 13)

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Intangible assets (note 14)

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Tax assets (note 15)

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets (note 16)

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale (hote 17)

TOTAL ASSETS

31/12/2022
541,699
19,024
106,445
416,230
389,342
169,897
239
219,206
8,399
8,399
11,802
11,802
232,704
7,064
225,640
5,032,023
680,463
4,351,560
1,029,800
381,251
2,940,509
19,180
(13,629)
3,289
14,456
118,469
104,837
13,632
241,752
132,668
109,084
34,845
5,841
29,004
101,021
209,964

6,945,316

Thousands of Euros

31/12/2021
1,079,398
17,642
779,664
282,092
221,918
119,575
778
101,565
9,275
9,275
13,333
13,333
330,717
8,750
321,967
3,512,148
556,656
2,955,492
485,526
2,469,966
2,955
2,731
3,138
5,108
131,551
114,823
16,728
270,862
147,892
122,970
32,354
4,762
27,592
92,620
16,611

5,724,719

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.ci d).



Statement of financial position

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities held for trading (note 6)

Derivatives
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (note 18)
Deposits
Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Derivatives - Hedge accounting (note 11)

Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of interest rate risk (note 11)
Liabilities under insurance and reinsurance contracts

Provisions (note 19)
Tax liabilities (note 15)
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Share capital repayable on demand
Other liabilities (note 16)

Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale (hote 17)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

31/12/22

91,691
91,691

5,982,785
5,436,982
443,133
102,670

1,032

14,456

17,524
14,919
5,834
9,085

97,869

118,266

6,338,542

Thousands of Euros

31/12/21

57,847
57,847

4,965,488
4,477,896
343,845
143,747

4,757
171
5,108

26,322
13,496
5,067
8,429

83,312

1,508

5,158,009

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.ci d).
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Statement of financial position

Thousands of Euros

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 31/12/22 31/12/21
Capital (note 20) 83,441 83,441
Paid up capital 83,441 83,441
Share premium (note 20) 103,842 103,842
Equity instruments issued other than capital (note 20) 33,950 34,700
Other equity instruments issued 33,950 34,700
Accumulated other comprehensive income (note 21) (44,061) (40,257)
Items that will not be classified to profit or loss (52) (16)
Fair value changes of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive (52) (16)
income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss (44,009) (40,241)
Foreign currency translation (30,347) (35,853)
Hedging derivatives Cash flow hedges (effective portion) 1,876 (679)
Fair value changes of debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive (15,538) (3,709)
income

Retained earnings (note 20) 455,467 461,559
Other reserves (note 20) (61,911) (95,274)
Reserves or accumulated losses of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 101,600 59,230
Other (163,511) (154,504)
(-) Treasury shares (2,307) (2,307)
Profit or loss attributable to owners of the Parent 30,123 14,023
Minority interests (non-controlling interests) 8,230 6,983
TOTAL EQUITY 606,774 566,710
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,945,316 5,724,719

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.ci d).



Statement of financial position

Thousands of Euros

INCOME STATEMENT

Interest income (note 24)

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortised cost

Other assets

(Interest expenses) (note 24)

(Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

(Derivatives - Hedge accounting, interest rate risk)

(Other liabilities)

(Expenses on share capital repayable on demand)

Dividend income (note 25)

Non-trading financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Fee and commission income (note 26)

(Fee and commission expenses) (note 27)

Gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value through profit or loss, net (note 28)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading, net (note 28)

Gains or losses on non-trading financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or
loss, net (note 28)

Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, net (note 28)

Gains or losses from hedge accounting, net (note 28)
Exchange differences (gain or loss), net (note 29)

Gains or losses on derecognition of non-financial assets, net
Other operating income (note 30)

(Other operating expenses) (note 30)

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSES, NET
(Administrative expenses) (note 31)

(Staff expenses)

(Other administrative expenses)

(Amortisation and depreciation)

(Property, plant and equipment) (note 13)
(Investment properties) (note 13)

(Other intangible assets) (note 14)

Modification gains or losses, net

(Provisions or reversal of provisions) (note 32)

(Commitments and guarantees given)

31/12/22
69,683
2,516
334
3,085
63,745
3
(27,004)
(25,847)
(296)
(861)
312

104

208
214,121
(80,928)

1,233

1,376
(143)

39,617

(19)

(1,462)

(1,932)
8,814
797
10,938
(7,691)

226,479
(168,647)
(112,448

(56,199)

(30,402)

(17,456)

(80)

(12,866)

31/12/21
46,783
2,504
186
4,275
39,818
(16,156)
(14,244)
(413)
(1,499)

192
192
223,223
(81,649)

2,669

2,692
77

38,375

(24)

(354)

(378)
4,834
329
10,282
(10,612)

217,514
(155,576)
(104,586)

(50,990)

(29,292)

(17,320)

(200)
(11,772)
(16,918)

(6)

Annual Report 2022

Financial statements Andbank Group

29



30

Thousands of Euros

INCOME STATEMENT
(Other provisions)

(Impairment or reversal of impairment on financial assets not measured at fair value
through profit or loss) (note 33)

(Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income)
(Financial assets at amortised cost)

(Impairment of reversal of impairment on investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates)

(Impairment or reversal of impairment on non-financial assets) (note 34)

(Property, plant and equipment)

(Goodwill)

(Other intangible assets)

(Other)

Negative goodwill recognised in profit or loss (note 3)

Share of the profit or loss of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Profit or loss from non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale not
qualifying as discontinued operations (note 35)

PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(Tax expense or income related to profit or loss from continuing operations) (note 37)
PROFIT ORLOSS AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit or loss after tax from continuing operations

PROFIT ORLOSS FORTHE YEAR

Attributable to minority interest (non-controlling interests)

Attributable to owners of the Parent

31/12/22
151

1,257

(301)
1,558

(778)

(281)

9
(130)
(160)

631
(313)

28,089
1,735
29,824
29,824
(299)
30,123

31/12/21
(16,912)

2,337

12
2,325

(47)

(15,675)
(628)
(13,007)
(1,735)
(309)
11,794
391

806

15,334
(296)
15,038
15,038
1,015
14,023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.ci d).



Statement of comprehensive income

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit or loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be classified to profit or loss

Fair value changes of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation

Translation gains or losses taken to equity

Hedging derivatives Cash flow hedges (effective portion)

Valuation gains or losses taken to equity

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Valuation gains or losses taken to equity
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to minority interest (non-controlling interest)

Attributable to owners of the Parent

31/12/22
29,824
(3,804)

(37)
(41)
4

(3,768)
5,506
5,506
2,840
2,840

(13,144)
(13,144)

1,030

26,020
(299)
26,319

Thousands of Euros

31/12/21
15,038
(5,747)

(91)
(101)
10

(5.656)
(291)
(291)
(167)
(167)

(5,794)

(5,794)

596

9,291
1,015
8,276

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.c i d)
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Statement of changes in equity

Equity Accumulated
instruments other
Share issued other comprehensive
Capital premium than capital income
Balance at 31 December 2021 83,441 103,842 34,700 (40,257)
Effects of correction of errors = = = =
Effects of changes in accounting policies - - - -
Balance at 1 January 2022 83,441 103,842 34,700 (40,257)
Issuance of ordinary shares - - - -
Exercise or expiration of other equity instruments issued = = (750) =
Dividends = = = =
Purchase of treasury shares - - - -
Transfers among components of equity - - - -
Equity increase or decrease resulting from business } . . .
combinations
Other increase or decrease in equity - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (3,804)
Balance at 31 December 2022 83,441 103,842 33,950 (44,061)
Equity Accumulated
instruments other
Share issued other comprehensive
Capital premium than capital income
Balance at 31 December 2020 78,842 73,441 34,800 (34,511)
Effects of correction of errors = = = =
Effects of changes in accounting policies = = = =
Balance at 1 January 2021 78,842 73,441 34,800 (34,511)
Issuance of ordinary shares 4 599 30,401 - -
Issuance of preference shares - - - -
Issuance of other equity instruments - - - -
Exercise or expiration of other equity instruments issued = = (100) =
Dividends = = = =
Purchase of treasury shares - - - -
Transfers among components of equity - - - -
Equity increase or decrease resulting from business . . . .
combinations
Other increase or decrease in equity = = = =
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (5,746)
Balance at 31 December 2021 83,441 103,842 34,700 (40,257)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.c i d).



Thousands of Euros

Profit or loss

Minority interests

Accumulated

attributable to other

Retained Other (-) Treasury owners of the comprehensive
earnings reserves shares Parent income Total
461,559 (95,274) (2,307) 27,030 6,983 579,717
= = (13,007) = (13,007)
461,559 (95,274) (2,307) 14,023 6,983 566,710
= = = = = (750)
(4,649) = = (14,023) = (18,672)
= 15,099 = = = 15,099
(1,443) 18,264 = - 1,545 18,366
= = = 30,123 (298) 26,021
455,467 (61,911) (2,307) 30,123 8,230 606,774
Thousands of Euros

Minority interests

Profit or loss Accumulated

attributable to other

Retained Other (-) Treasury owners of the comprehensive
earnings reserves shares Parent income Total
455,963 (105,242) (1,927) 29,470 5,354 536,190
= (7,011) = = = (7,011)
455,963 (112,253) (1,927) 29,470 5,354 529,179
= (1,065) = = = 33,935
= = = = = (100)
(8,000) - - - = (8,000)
= = (380) = = (380)
15,070 = = (29,470) = (14,400)
= 1,556 = = = 1,556
(1,474) 16,488 = - 615 15,629
= = = 27,030 1,014 22,298
461,559 (95,274) (2,307) 27,030 6,983 579,717
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Thousands of Euros

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31/12/22 31/12/21
A, Cash flows used in operating activities (608,696) (203,854)
Profit for the year 30,122 14,023
Adjustments to obtain cash flows from operating activities 26,635 53,078
Depreciation and amortisation 30,402 29,293
Other adjustments (3,767) 23,785
Net decrease in operating assets (1,637,380) (733,991)
Financial assets held for trading (167,422) (31,961)
Non-trading financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss 2,406 2
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (25,781) (15,608)
Financial assets at amortised cost (1,421,259) (675,396)
Other operating assets (25,324) (11,028)
Net increase in operating liabilities 972,822 469,330
Financial liabilities held for trading 33,844 (16,452)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 931,686 498129
Other operating liabilities 7292 (12,347)
Income tax receivable/payable (895) (6,294)
B, Cash flows used ininvesting activities (26,098) (12,572)
Payments (54,323) (20,043)
Tangible assets (9,834) (5,427)
Intangible assets (9,903) (11,185)
Subsidiaries and other business units (203) =
Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale (34,383) (3,431)
Amounts received 28,225 7,471
Tangible assets 8,432 1,253
Subsidiaries and other business units 15,098 2,535
Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 4,695 3,683
C, Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 97,095 (6,309)
Payments (2,193) (40,244)
Dividends - (8,000)
Debt securities = (30,290)
Redemption of own equity instruments (2,193) (1,574)
Acquisition of own equity instruments - (380)
Amounts received 99,288 33,935
Debt securities 99,288 -
Issue of own equity instruments = 33,935

D) Effect of exchange rate fluctuations = =

E) Netincrease/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c+d) (537,699) (222,735)
F) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,079,398 1,302,133
G) Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 541,699 1,079,398

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
The financial statements for 2021 are also included for comparative purposes (see note 2.ci d).



Notes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts

1. Nature, Activity and Composition of
the Group

Andorra Banc Agricol Reig, S.A. (hereinafter "Andbank” or "the
Bank") is a limited liability company incorporated in 1930,
protected by the law of Andorra, with registered offices in
Escaldes-Engordany (Principality of Andorra). The Bank's
statutory activity is to carry out banking activities, as defined
by the regulations of the Andorran financial system. In addition,
it can undertake any necessary activity or which complements
its statutory activity. The Bank operates under the Tax
Registration Number (TRN) A700158F.

In order to adapt to Law 7/2013 of 9 May 2013, on 28 June
2013 the Board of Directors expanded the statutory activities
to all those activities that Andorran financial system legislation
allows banking entities to carry out, including as many
operations and activities which are accessory or complementary
to the principal activity.

The Bank's registered offices are at Carrer Manel Cerqueda i
Escaler, number 4-6, Escaldes - Engordany, Principality of
Andorra.

In order to carry out the aforementioned statutory and principal
activity, Andorra Banc Agricol Reig, SA has the following
commercial numbers: 915893 A, Casa Muxero, AD100-Canillo;
908555 X, Avda. Coprincep Episcopal, 006, AD200-Encamp;
906922 G, Carrer Sant Jordi 012, Edifici La Morera, Local E,
Pas de la Casa, AD200-Encamp; 909868 F, Casa Nova Joanet,
AD300-0rdino; 909099 Z, Avda. Sant Antoni 032, Edifici
Ferrand's, AD400-La Massana; 917946 Z, Placa Rebes 008,
AD500-Andorra La Vella; 911590 B, Avda. de Tarragona 014,
Edifici I'llla, AD500-Andorra La Vella; 906921 H, Avda. Verge
de Canolich, 053, AD600-Sant Julia de Loria; 910675 E, Avda.
FiteriRosell, 004 B, Edifici Centre de Negoci, AD700-Escaldes-
Engordany.

At an extraordinary and universal meeting held on 10 May
2002, the shareholders adopted a resolution to change its
registered name from Banc Agricol i Comercial d’Andorra, S.A.,
to Andorra Banc Agricol Reig, S.A., together with a
corresponding modification of article 1 of its articles of
association.

Andbank is the Parent of the Andorra Banc Agricol Reig Group
(hereinafter the Group or the Andbank Group), which comprises
the companies listed in Appendix |.

As a member of the Andorran financial system, the Andbank
Group is subject to the supervision of the AFA, the Andorran
financial system's authority which performs its functions
independently from the General Administration. The Andbank
Group is also subject to compliance with local Andorran
legislation (see note 41).

2. Basis of presentation of the consolidated
annual accounts

=a.Compliance with IFRS as adopted by the Andorran
Government

The consolidated annual accounts for 2022 have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Andorran Government (IFRS-Andorra) which are set
out in the Decree dated 28 December 2016 which approves the
accounting framework applicable to entities operating in the
Andorran financial system and to Andorran collective investment
undertakings in accordance with the international financial
reporting standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS-EU)
which have now been adopted by Andorra, to give a fair view of the
consolidated equity, consolidated financial position, consolidated
results of operations, consolidated cash flows and changes in
consolidated equity of Andorra Banc Agricol Reig, S.A. and
subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 in accordance with the
aforementioned framework.

International Financial Reporting Standards are the standards
and interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). These standards comprise::

- International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter
"IFRS").

- International Accounting Standards (hereinafter "|AS").
- IFRIC interpretations (hereinafter "IFRIC"); and

- SIC interpretations (hereinafter "SIC")

sb. Basis of presentation of the annual accounts

The consolidated annual accounts have been prepared on the
basis of the accounting records of Andorra Banc Agricol Reig,
SA and the entities included in the Andbank Group, on a going
concern basis.

The consolidated annual accounts have been prepared using
the relevant accounting principles and valuation standards
detailed in note 3. No mandatory accounting principles having
a significant effect on the consolidated annual accounts have
been excluded during their preparation. Since the accounting
principles and measurement criteria applied in the preparation
of the Andbank Group's 2022 consolidated annual accounts
may differ from those used by some of the entities comprising
the Andbank Group, certain adjustments and reclassifications
have been made in the consolidation process in order to
standardise these principles and criteria and bring them into
line with IFRS-Andorra and IFRS-EU applied by the
Andbank Group.

The consolidated annual accounts for 2021, prepared in
accordance with IFRS-Andorra and IFRS-EU in force in 2021,
were approved by the shareholders at a general meeting held
on 27 April 2022. The 2022 consolidated annual accounts of
the Andbank Group and the annual accounts of the entities
forming part of the Andbank Group, are pending approval by
their respective shareholders. However, the Bank's directors
consider that these annual accounts will be approved without
any significant changes.
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sc. Comparative information

At 31 December 2022 the consolidated annual accounts have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS-Andorra and IFRS-EU
and based on this accounting framework they include
comparative information. The information contained in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements at 31
December 2021 and consolidated notes thereto, prepared in
accordance with standards prevailing in 2021, is presented
solely and exclusively for the purpose of comparison with the
information for 2022 and therefore does not constitute
consolidated annual accounts of the Andbank Group for 2022.

Agreement for the sale of Banco Andbank (Brasil) to
Creditas Financial Holding.

As mentioned in note 3 a), during 2022 an agreement was
reached to sell the stake in Banco Andbank (Brasil), S.A., the
parent of a group of companies with a banking licence, through
which the Andbank Group carries out its private banking activities
in Brazil. As established in IFRS 5, asset and liability balances for
these companies for sale have been reclassified from their
corresponding headings to Non-current assets and disposal
groups classified as held for sale and Liabilities included in
disposal groups classified as held for sale, respectively, on the
consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2022. Likewise, as
required by IFRS 5, gains generated or losses incurred by these
companies from the signing of the sale and purchase agreement
until the year end are recognised under Gains or losses on non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale not
qualifying as discontinued operations on the consolidated income
statement for the year. Note 17 includes details of the assets and
liabilities of the companies for sale in Brazil in 2022.

The closing of the transaction is subject to obtaining
authorisations from the competent regulating authorities,
estimated to take place during the second half of 2023.

=d. Changes in accounting criteria and correction of errors

The statements of financial position, consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and the notes thereto for
2022 include comparative figures for 2021, which differ from
those approved by the shareholders at a general meeting held
on 27 April 2022 as a result of the corrections to errors
detailed below:

= |t has been detected that the goodwill of Andbank Corretora
de Seguros de Vida Ltda (Brazil), Quest Capital Advisers
Agente de Valores S.A. (Uruguay) and Columbus (Mexico)
showed indications of impairment, which had arisen in the
prior year. Following the analysis carried out, the
aforementioned goodwill was impaired with a charge to
reserves, for amounts of Euros 9,007 thousand, Euros 3,000
thousand and Euros 1,000 thousand, respectively.

An amount of Euros 7,011 thousand was reclassified (Euros
7,011 thousand in 2020) for intangible assets recognised in
prior years. It has been detected that these assets do not
strictly meet the conditions established in IAS 38 for
capitalisation, or as a result of the technological changes
made in 2017 they do not provide economic benefits for their
use from previous years.

None of the aforementioned corrections have an impact on the
Group's capital ratios.

The following statement of financial position items for 2021
have been affected by the corrections:

Statement of financial Presented at 31 Restated at 31
position December 2021 Restated December 2021
Goodwill 160,899 (13,007) 147,892
Other intangible assets 129,981 (7,011) 122,970
Total assets 5,744,737 (20,018) 5,724,719
Other reserves (88,263) (7,011) (95,274)
Profitaxtributable to owners 27,030 (13,007) 14,023
Total equity 586,728 (20,018) 566,710
Total equity and liabilities 5,744,737 (20,018) 5,724,719

=e. Functional and presentation currency

The figures disclosed in these consolidated annual accounts
are expressed in Euros, the Andbank Group's functional
currency. All the financial information is expressed in
thousands of Euros.

»f. Relevant accounting estimates and relevant assumptions
and judgements when applying accounting policies

Relevant accounting estimates and judgements and other
estimates and assumptions have to be made when applying the
accounting principles to prepare the consolidated annual
accounts in accordance with IFRS-Andorra and IFRS-EU. A
summary of the items requiring a higher degree of judgement,
complexity or where the assumptions and estimates made are
significant to the preparation of the consolidated annual
accounts, is as follows:



(i). Relevant accounting estimates and assumptions

The main estimates made by the Andbank Group's directors to
prepare these consolidated annual accounts are as follows:

= Impairment losses on financial assets and fair value of
associated guarantees.

= Impairment losses on tangible assets.

= Impairment losses on non-current assets held for sale.
= Estimates of useful lives of intangible assets.

= Estimates used to calculate provisions.

= Assumptions used in actuarial calculations made to measure
pension obligations and post-employment obligations.

= Fair value of certain financial assets and financial liabilities
not quoted or quoted on official secondary markets.

= Fair value of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates.

These estimates have been calculated based on the best
information available at the date of these consolidated annual
accounts, although future events may require changes to these
estimates in subsequent years.

Standards and interpretations approved for their adoption in the European Union and Andorra.

(ii). Relevant judgements

Information on critical judgements on the application of
accounting policies which have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
mainly refers to:

= Classification of financial assets: evaluation of the business
model used by the Andbank Group for managing the financial
assets and evaluation of the contractual cash flow
characteristics of financial assets.

= Establishing of criteria to determine whether the credit risk
of financial assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition and determining of the methodology to measure
the expected credit loss.

= Determination of control over investees.

=g. New requirements of the IFRS introduced in 2022

During 2022 the following standards, amendments and
interpretations published by the IASB and approved for their
adoption in the European Union and Andorra have come
into force:

Mandatory adoption
- years beginning on
or after:

Amendments to
IFRS 3. Reference to
the Conceptual
Framework

IFRS 3 is updated to align the definitions of an asset and liability in a business
combination with those contained in the conceptual framework for 2018. In
addition, a new exception to IFRS 3 for liabilities and contingent liabilities has
been added.

1 January 2022

Amendments
to IAS 16. Proceeds
before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the entity
is preparing the asset for its intended use. Sales proceeds for such samples,
together with the costs of production, are now recognised in profit or loss. The
amendments also clarify that an entity is testing whether the asset is functioning
properly when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The
financial performance of an asset is not relevant for this assessment. Therefore, an
asset can be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and
subject to depreciation before it has reached the level of operating performance
expected by management

1 January 2022

Amendments

to IAS 37. Onerous
Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

It mentions that the direct cost of fulfilling a contract includes both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts. It also clarifies that before a separate provision for an onerous
contract is established, an entity recognises any impairment loss that has occurred
on assets used in fulfilling the contract, in accounts for the assets dedicated to the
contract.

1 January 2022

These standards, amendments and interpretations adopted
have not had a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

sh. Recent IFRS pronouncements

During 2023 and prior to the date these annual accounts were
authorised for issue, the following standards, amendments and
interpretations published by the IASB and approved for their
adoption in the European Union and Andorra have come
into force:
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Standards and interpretations approved for their adoption in the European Union and Andorra.

Mandatory adoption
- years beginning on

or after:
Amendments Amendments to IAS require that companies disclose material information on
tolAS 1. Disclosure  accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies. Amendments 1 January 2023
of accounting provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to the disclosure of Y
policies accounting policies.
Amendments The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in
to IAS 8. Definition accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. This distinction is
of accou-mtm important because changes to accounting estimates are only applied prospectively 1 January 2023
. ¢ to future transactions and other future events, whilst changes to accounting policies
are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events.
Amendments These amendments introduce an exemption from the initial recognition provided
to IAS 12. Deferred in IAS 12 for those situations where a single transaction gives rise to equal
tax related to assets  amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences. These amendments 1 January 2023
and liabilities arising  will affect those transactions that have occurred on or after the beginning of the Y
from a single earliest comparative period presented. Early adoption of these amendments is
transaction. permitted.
These amendments clarify the accounting treatment of assets sold or contributed
Amendments to : : . . ;
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 between an investor and its associates or joint ventures, depending on whether the
..~ " non-monetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute
Sale or Contribution : ) : )
N a business. The investor recognises the gain or loss when the non-monetary assets 1 January
i constitute a business. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business the 2023 (%)
an Investor and its ) : : . s
) ) investor recognises the gain or loss to the extent of other investors'’ interests. The
Associate or Joint . ) ) .
Venture amendments shall only be applied when an investor sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture.
This sets out the principles that an entity must apply to account for insurance
IFRS 17 . Insurance contracts: This new standard replaces IFRS 4. The new standard introduces a 1 January
contracts single accounting model for all insurance contracts and requires that entities use 2024 (7)
assumptions in line with their estimates.
A d ts t . . . . .
IFrlggnl;nﬁwnsusracr:ce This proposed amendment refers to financial assets for which comparative
N information is presented on initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9, but where this
contracts: Initial . . . .
S information has not been restated for IFRS 9. It permits an entity to present 1 January
application of IFRS . . X . . e e
comparative information about a financial asset as if the classification and 2024 ()
17 andIFRS 9 - . . : .
} measurement requirements of IFRS 9 had been applied to that financial asset
Comparative
: : before.
information

(*) The IASB decided to defer the expiry date of the amendments (without fixing a new specific date) as it is considering a broader review that
could result in simplifying the accounting of these transactions and other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
(**) Earlier application is permitted on or after 1 January 2023.

The Andbank Group is currently analysing the possible impacts ~ On the other hand, at the date these annual accounts were
arising from the adoption of these standards on its accounting
criteria, information to be disclosed in the annual accounts and
its reporting procedures and systems. Nevertheless, the
Andbank Group avails of the necessary means to adopt these
standards and is currently analysing the effects that could
arise. No significant impacts are expected from the application

of these standards, nor in particular from IFRS 17.

authorised for issue, the most significant standards,
amendments and interpretations published by the IASB but
which have still not been adopted by the European Union or
Andorra, are as follows:



Standards and interpretations pending approval for their adoption in the European Union and

Andorra.

Mandatory adoption
- years beginning on

or after:

Amendments
tolAS 1. The objective is to improve the determination of a liability as current or non-
Classification of current. This focuses on loans and their covenants, where the convertible debt 1 January 2024
Liabilities as Current  could mean that it should be classified as a current liability, and the possible effects ¥
or Non-Current that reclassification could have on covenants.
Amendments : N -
to IFRS 16. | oase These amendments specify how a seller-lessee measures the lease liability arising

) from a sale and leaseback transaction so that the seller-lessee does not recognise 1 January 2024

Liability in a Sale and
[ easeback

any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

At the date these financial statements were authorised for
issue, the Andbank Group had still not evaluated the effect that
these standards could have onits financial statements, as they
had not been approved for use in the European Union
or Andorra.

3.Relevant accounting principles and
valuation standards

=a. Business combinations and consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements of the Andbank Group
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 have been prepared by the
management of the Andbank Group.

The Andbank Group's consolidated statement of position
includes, in addition to the figures for the Parent, those
corresponding to the subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
and associates. Appendix | contains a list of these companies.

The process used to integrate the assets and liabilities of these
companies is carried out based on the type of control or
influence exercised thereon.

(i) Subsidiaries

The statement of financial position includes, in addition to the
figures for the Parent, those corresponding to the subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates.

The process used to integrate the assets and liabilities of these
companies is carried out based on the type of control or

influence exercised thereon.

The Andbank Group considers subsidiaries to be those over
which it has control. Control arises when:

= |t has power over the investee.

= [t has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee.

= |t has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
the amount of the investor's returns

Generally, voting rights give the power to direct relevant
activities of an investee. To calculate this, all the direct and
indirect voting rights are taken into account, including the
potential rights such as call options on equity instruments of
the investee. In certain situations, power could be used to
direct activities without having the majority of voting rights.

In these situations it is evaluated whether it has the practical
ability to direct its relevant activities unilaterally. Relevant
activities include financial or operating activities or those
relating to the appointment and remuneration of the
management bodies, inter alia.

Prior to consolidation the financial statements of the
subsidiaries are unified to IFRS-EU and IFRS-Andorra.

The subsidiaries are fully consolidated, irrespective of their
activity, with those of the Andbank Group, which involves
aggregating the assets, liabilities and equity, income and
expenses of a similar nature disclosed in the individual
statements of financial position. A percentage of the carrying
amount of direct and indirect holdings in subsidiaries is
eliminated equivalent to the proportion of equity of these
subsidiaries represented by these holdings. The remaining
balances and transactions between consolidated companies
are eliminated in the consolidation process.

Results of the subsidiaries acquired during the year are
consolidated based on the results generated since the
acquisition date. Likewise, the results of subsidiaries which
cease to be subsidiaries during the year, are consolidated by
the amount of the results generated from the beginning of the
year to the date on which control is lost.

Acquisitions and disposals which do not imply a change of
control in the investee are recognised as asset and liability
transactions and no gains or losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The difference between the
consideration given or received and the decrease or increase
of non-controlling interests, respectively, is recognised
under reserves.
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IFRS 10 stipulates that when control of a subsidiary is lost, the
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests, as well as other
items which could be recognised in valuation adjustments are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position and the fair value of the consideration received as well
as any retained investment is recognised. The difference
between both these amounts is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

(ii). Joint ventures (jointly-controlled entities)

The Andbank Group considers jointly-controlled entities to be
those which are not subsidiaries and which, due to
contractual agreement, it controls together with other
shareholders. In these situations, decisions about the
relevant activities generally require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

Prior to consolidation the financial statements of the jointly-
controlled entities are unified to IFRS-EU and IFRS-Andorra.

(iii). (iii) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Andbank Group, either
directly or indirectly, exercises significant influence
(understood as the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control of
those policies) and which are not subsidiaries or jointly-
controlled entities. Significant influence arises, in the majority
of cases, when 20% or more of the voting power of the investee
is held. If less than 20% of the voting power is held, significant
influence shall arise if any of the circumstances indicated in
|AS 28 exist. The circumstances which usually evidence the
existence of significant influence are the representation on the
board of directors, participation in policy-making processes of
the investee, the existence of material transactions between
the entity and its investee, the interchange of managerial
personnel or the provision of essential technical information.

Exceptionally, those entities in which more than 20% of voting
rights are held in the investee are not considered as associates,
since it can be clearly demonstrated that this influence does
not exist and therefore the Andbank Group loses the power to
participate in financial and operating policy decisions.

Prior to consolidation, the financial statements of the
associates are harmonised with IFRS-EU.

Associates are accounted for in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Andbank Group using the equity
method, i.e. for the percentage of their equity equal to the
Andbank Group's percentage shareholding, after taking into
account dividends received and other equity eliminations. The
same percentage of any gains or losses from transactions with
associates is eliminated. The proportional part is recognised in
the Andbank Group's income statement based on the economic
participation of the results of associates.

The Andbank Group has not used the financial statements of
entities which are equity accounted and which refer to a date
different to that of the Parent of the Andbank Group.

(iv). Business combinations

Accounting standards define business combinations as the
union of two or more entities in a single entity or group of
entities, with the acquirer obtaining control of another entity
at the acquisition date. For those business combinations in
which the Andbank Group obtains control, the cost of the
business combination is determined, which is generally the fair
value of the consideration transferred.

This consideration will be formed of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed vis-a-vis the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the acquirer. At acquisition date, the
difference between the following is evaluated:

= The sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
non-controlling interests and the previously held equity
interest in the entity or acquiree.

= The total net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, measured at fair value.

The positive difference between i) and ii) is recognised under
Intangible assets - Goodwill on the balance sheet, provided
that allocation is not possible to specific equity items or
identifiable intangible assets of the entity or the acquiree. If
the difference is negative, it will be recognised under Negative
goodwill recognised in profit or loss on the income statement.

(v). Andbank Group companies

Appendix 1 includes information on the subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates included in the consolidated
group, providing details of their domicile, percentage
ownership and activities.

A brief description of the significant events arising in the
Andbank Group companies during 2022 and 2021 is
as follows:

On 22 December 2020, the AFA granted prior authorisation,
with no opposition, to Andbank Espafia, SAU, for the direct
purchase of 100% of the share capital of Bank Degroof
Petercam Spain, SAU (currently called "Wealthprivat Bank,
S.A”) and indirect purchase of 100% of Degroof Petercam
SGIIC, SAU (currently called “Wealthprivat Bank, SAU") and
Degroof Petercam Corporate Finance Spain, SAU (currently
called "Wealthprivat Corporate Finance, SAU"). This transaction
will be closed in the first quarter of 2021. Details of the
consideration given, the fair value of the net assets acquired
and the Andbank Group's goodwill are as follows:



Thousands of Euros

Consideration given -

Cash paid 11,403
Fair value of net assets acquired 19,365
Nega_twe gogdvvlll recognised in 7962
opening profit or loss
lationships - Oth

Customer relationships - Other 3832
intangible assets

Negative goodwill recognised in 11,794

closing profit or loss

On 1 September 2021 a sale and purchase agreement was
signed for all the shares of Wealthprivat Asset Management
S.G.I.I.C., S.A.U. This transaction was not effective until
the following suspensive conditions have been met:

= The non-opposition of the sale-purchase transaction by the
Spanish National Securities Market (CNMV). Event that took
place on 17 and 23 June 2022.

= Express authorisation of the transaction by the Andorran
Financial Authority (AFA). Event that took place on 29
June 2022.

As a result of this agreement, in the financial statements for
2021 the assets and liabilities of Wealthprivat Asset
Management S.G.I.I.C., S.A. were reclassified to the consolidated
statements of financial position under assets as Non-current
assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale and under
liabilities as Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as
held for sale.

On 14 December 2021 the AFA granted prior authorisation for
various transactions relating to Mylnvestor, SA which were
executed on 22 December 2021. The authorised transactions
are as follows:

= Non-monetary capital increase whereby the shareholders of
Desarrollos Myinvestor, SA (hereinafter "Desarrollos”)
contribute all of the shares of Desarrollos to Myinvestor.

= Downstream merger of Myinvestor and Desarrollos whereby
the latter absorbs the former.

= Non-monetary capital increase of the company resulting from
the merger, whereby Andbank Espafa, SAU contributes a
portfolio comprising the economic rights associated with
its customers.

Within the investments that the Andbank Group holds in Spain,
certain mercantile restructuring has been implemented to
improve the banking activity in all of its lines of business.
Specifically, the objectives it seeks with these operations are
as follows:

= Because the Andbank Espafia Group holds two different
banking licences, as a result of the corporate reorganisation
it will independently carry out retail banking activity for one
of the licences and private banking activity for the other
licence. This will boost efficiency when managing the
different businesses carried out for each of the banking

licences, whilst taking advantage of economies of scale
which entail integrating the private banking business into a
single business on the one hand and the retail banking
business on the other.

= This will provide a more flexible structure in the face of future
business associations with third parties in each business
area, especially regarding the rounds of financing planned in
the commercial banking business.

In the scope of this transaction, on 21 December 2022 Andbank
Esparfia, S.A.U. (now called My Investor Banco, S.A.U.) was spun
off in favour of WealthPrivat Bank, SAU (now called Andbank
Espafia Banca Privada, S.A.U.) for the purpose of separating
their private banking and commercial banking businesses into
two independent banks. This transaction was authorised by the
corresponding supervisory authorities: the Spanish National
Securities Commission (CNMV) on 2 December 2022, the
Banco de Espafia on 20 December 2022, the European Centrall
Bank on 5 December 2022, the Spanish Ministry of Economic
Affairs and Digital Transformation on 17 October 2022 and the
Andorran Financial Authority (AFA) on 1 December 2022. In
addition, in a letter dated 29 December 2022, the Banco de
Espafia communicated its favourable ruling regarding the
statutory amendments forming part of this process.

The assets spun off included shares from the following Group
companies in Spain: Andbank Espafia Banca Privada, S.A.U.,
Andbank Wealth Management, S.G.1.I.C., S.A.U., APC Servicios
Administrativos, S.L.U., Andbank Correduria de Seguros, S.L.U.,
Merchbanc E.G.F.P., S.A.U., Merchbanc Internacional, S.a.r.L.
and Medipatrimonia Invest, S.L.

On 16 February 2023, the AFA registered the changes in name
of Mylnvestor Banco, SAU (formerly Andbank Esparia, SAU) and
Andbank Espafia Banca Privada, SAU (formerly WealthPrivat
Bank, SAU).

On 29 December 2022 Banco de Espafia informed Mylnvestor
Banco, SAU (formerly Andbank Espafia, SAU) and Andbank
Esparia Banca Privada, SAU (formerly WealthPrivat Bank, SAU)
of the favourable ruling regarding the statutory amendments
deriving from the spin-off of these companies.

On 9 September 2022, Andbank requested prior authorisation
from the AFA for Myinvestor Banco, SAU's (formerly Andbank
Espafia, SAU) direct acquisition of 100% of the shares of
Belambe, SL and the indirect acquisition of shares of its Spanish
subsidiaries (Finanbest Inversiones Inteligentes; Agencia de
Valores, SA; Finanhub, SLU; i Finanbolt, SLU). On 21 February
2023, the AFA granted prior authorisation with no opposition
to such transaction.

During 2022, the AFA registered the various sales of
Mylnvestor, SA shares by Andbank Espafia, SAU, leaving a
remaining 49.45% stake to Mylnvestor Banco, SAU (formerly
Andbank Esparia, SAU) at 31 December 2022 and a 5% stake
to Andbank Wealth Management SGIIC, SAU., subsidiary of
Andbank Espafia Banca Privada, SAU (formerly WealthPrivat
Bank, SAU).
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On 26 September 2022 the AFA granted prior authorisation to
proceed with the incorporation of a collective investment
undertaking management company in Spain, under the name of
Actyus Private Equity, SGIIC, SA, with share capital of Euros
300 thousand and fully owned by Andbank. The transaction was
authorised by the Spanish National Securities Market
Commission (CNMV) on 17 October 2022.

On 29 April 2021, along with subsequent letters, the AFA
granted prior authorisation to increase the share capital of
Andbank Distribuidora de Titulos e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda for
a maximum amount of Brazilian Reals 700 thousand, fully
subscribed by Banco Andbank (Brasil), S.A. with a charge to its
own funds. On 5 July 2021 the Banco Central do Brasil
approved this transaction, with the share capital of the company
rising from Brazilian Reals 1.1 million to Brazilian Reals 1.8
million. On 4 March 2022, the AFA informed that it had
registered this transaction.

On 22 February 2021, the AFA granted authorisation to make
successive capital increases in Banco Andbank (Brasil), S.A. for
a maximum amount of Euros 15 million (at the Brazilian Real
exchange rate at the transaction date). On 19 May 2021, the
AFA was informed of a share capital increase of Brazilian Reals
65 million (with the share capital rising from Brazilian Reals 252
million to Brazilian Reals 317 million).

On 6 July 2022 Andbank signed an agreement with Creditas
Financial Holding to sell the investee Banco Andbank (Brasil) SA
and its subsidiaries, with a banking licence, to carry out its
activity under series of conditions for the transfer of the banking
business up to that date, included in the aforementioned
agreement. Likewise, the terms and conditions set out in the
agreement stipulated that Andbank will continue to carry out
such activity in the Brazilian market, benefiting from the
synergies provided by the agreement reached with the buyer.
This agreement includes the sale of 100% of the retail banking
business and 25% of the private banking business (which
requires the carve-out of this activity), payment of the
transaction with bonds convertible into shares of the buyer and
an offset of the results of the second half of 2022.

In the scope of this transaction, on 28 October 2022 the AFA
granted prior authorisation without opposition for the sale of
Banco Andbank (Brasil), SA and Andbank Distribuidora de Titulos
e Valores Mobiliarios, Ltda. to Creditas Financial Holding. This
sale transaction was authorised by the Conselho Administrativo
de Defesa Econbmica of Brazil on 15 August 2022. This
transaction is also subject to obtaining authorisation from the
Banco Central do Brasil, which is pending enforcement at the
date these financial statements were authorised for issue.

Moreover, the sale and purchase agreement stipulates certain
mercantile transactions prior to the transaction being closed. In
this context, in November 2022 the share capital of the Brazilian
entity Banco Andbank (Brasil), SA was increased by Brazilian
Reals 200 million, This transaction was authorised by the
corresponding supervisory authorities, the Banco Central do
Brasil on 21 November 2022 and the Andorran Financial
Authority (AFA) on 28 October 2022.

The closing of the transaction is subject to obtaining the
regulating authorisations from the competent authorities. It is
estimated that this transaction will be definitively closed in the
second half of 2023. Note 17 includes, inter alia, details of the
assets and liabilities of the companies for sale at the 2022 close.

As aresult of this agreement, the assets and liabilities of Banco
Andbank (Brasil), SA are classified in the consolidated
statements of financial position for 2022 under assets as Non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
and under liabilities as Liabilities included in disposal groups
classified as held for sale.

On 1 June 2021 the AFA granted prior authorisation for the
liquidation of Quest Capital Advisers, S.A (AAGI). On 17 August
2022 and 29 September 2022 the Argentine Ministry of
Justice and Human Rights - General Inspection of Justice and
the AFA, respectively, registered the aforementioned liquidation.

On 18 June 2021 the AFA entered in its corresponding register
the purchase of 8,000 shares in Sigma Investment House, Ltd,
representing approximately 9.88% of the share capital, for an
amount of Israeli Shekels 842 thousand. Andbank obtained a
100% stake in the aforementioned Israeli company through this
acquisition.

On 8 August 2022, together with previous letters, Andbank
requested prior authorisation from the AFA to carry out a
strategic alliance in Israel by integrating the Sigma Group with
the business of the Clarity Group that heads KCPS Clarity
Capital Group, Ltd, through the creation of a newco in Israel with
the subsequent sale of Clarity Group and Sigma Investment
House, Ltd shares. This transaction was authorised by the Israel
Securities Authority on 1 December 2022 and by the AFA on
21 February 2023, and will come into effect in 2023.

During the first quarter of 2022 the AFA was informed of the
liquidation and winding up of the company and the banking
license associated with Andbank Bahamas, Limited. On 28
March 2022, the AFA registered the aforementioned liquidation
and extinction.

On 8 July 2022, within the framework of the liquidation of
Nobilitas, NV, the AFA regularised and registered Nobilitas, NV's
transfer of all the shares of Zumzeiga, BV and Egregia, BV to
Andbank, as well as the liquidation and winding up of Nobilitas,
NV. Transactions duly registered in the Netherlands Chamber of
Commerce on 13 April 2022.

On 20 May 2022 the AFA granted prior authorisation to
increase the share capital of Andbank Monaco, SAM., by an
amount of Euros 5,586 thousand, subsequent to authorisation
from the Monaco Financial Activities Supervisory Commission
(Commission de Contréle des Activités Financiéres) on 8 April
2022. The share capital was increased on 2 December 2022
and duly published in the Official Gazette of Monaco on 16
December 2022, with the nominal value of the subsidiary's
shares rising from Euros 100 to Euros 128.

On 14 November 2022 the AFA granted prior authorisation to
reduce the share capital of the subsidiary Andbank Luxembourg,



SA by Euros 9,207 thousand, for the purpose of offsetting prior
years' losses, subsequent to authorisation and no opposition
from the Luxembourg Financial Sector Surveillance Commission
(Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier).

sb. Financial instruments
(i). Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 defines the criteria for classifying financial instruments
based on an analysis of the business model of financial assets
and the characteristics of contractual cash flows. The Andbank
Group has identified three different business models for the
debt securities portfolio and a business model for the loans and
advances portfolio.

The three business models for the debt securities portfolio are
as follows: a) model focused on receiving contractual cash
flows, which mainly include financial instruments with a long-
term time horizon and for the purpose of generating a stable
financial margin; b) model focused on receiving contractual
cash flows and on sales, which mainly include financial
instruments with a medium-term time horizon for the purpose
of generating a stable financial margin, as well as generating
cash flows for sales when there are optimum market conditions;
and c) other business models, which include, on the one hand,
a model focused on generating cash flows for active
management of purchases and sales of financial instruments,
as well as, on the other hand, a model focused on the
management of liquidity through purchases and sales with a
short-term time horizon.

The business model identified for the loan and advances
portfolio is a model focused on receiving contractual cash
flows for the purpose of generating a stable financial margin.

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at amortised cost, measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, measured at fair
value through profit or loss and held for trading.

The classification of financial instruments in the category of
amortised cost or fair value involves two tests: the business
model and assessment of contractual cash flows, known as
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criteria. The
objective of the SPPI test is to determine whether, in
accordance with the contractual characteristics of the
instrument, its cash flows represent solely the payment of the
principal and interest, understood as consideration of the time
value of money and the credit risk of the debtor. Therefore,
taking into consideration the business model and contractual
cash flows:

= A financial instrument is classified in the amortised cost
portfolio when it is held within a business model, whose
objective is to hold the financial instrument in order to collect
contractual cash flows and comply with the SPPI test.

= A financial instrument is classified under financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial
instrument is held within a business model, whose objective

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows, and
selling and complying with the SPPI test.

= A financial instrument is classified at fair value through profit
or loss provided that the Andbank Group's business model for
its management or the characteristics of its contractual cash
flows, means that it should not be classified in any of the
aforementioned portfolios.

Details of the valuation methods of financial instruments,
taking into consideration their classification, are as follows:

= Amortised cost: These include financial instruments held
within a business model whose objective is to collect principal
and interest contractual cash flows, over those where no
significant unjustified sales exist and fair value is not a key
factor in managing these changes. Unjustified sales are those
that are different from sales related to an increase in the
asset's credit risk, with unanticipated funding needs (stress
case scenarios), even if such sales are significant in value, or
from sales of assets that no longer meet the credit criteria
specified in the investment policy Additionally, the
contractual cash flow characteristics substantially represent
a "basic financing agreement”.

Initial and subsequent measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, plus or minus transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income: These
include financial instruments held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting cash flows of
principal and interest and selling these assets, with the fair
value being a key element in the management of assets.
Additionally, the contractual cash flow characteristics
substantially represent a "basic financing agreement”.

Initial measurement:

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified
in this category are measured at fair value, recognising
gains or losses in other comprehensive income, with the
exception of exchange gains or losses and expected credit
losses. The amounts recognised under other comprehensive
income are recognised in profit or loss upon derecognition
of financial assets. However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

= Fair value through profit or loss for the period: These
include financial instruments held within a business model
whose objective is not achieved using any of the
aforementioned methods, with the fair value being a key
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factor in the management of these assets. In addition, the
characteristics of the contractual cash flows do not
substantially represent a basic financing agreement.

These include financial instruments designated upon initial
recognition, such as for example hybrid financial assets and
liabilities which have to be fully measured at fair value, as
well as financial assets which are managed together as
Liabilities under insurance contracts measured at fair value,
or with financial derivatives to reduce exposure to variations
in fair value or are managed together with financial liabilities
and derivatives for the purpose of reducing the global
interest rate risk exposure.

In general, this category includes all those assets which, in
being classified as such, eliminate or significantly reduce a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (accounting
mismatches). The financial instruments in this category
must be permanently subject to an integrated and consistent
system of measuring, managing and controlling risks and
results, which enables it to be proven that the risk is
effectively reduced. Financial assets and financial liabilities
can only be included in this portfolio on the date of their
acquisition or when they originate.

Initial measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue are
recognised as an expense when incurred.

Subsequent measurement:

After initial recognition, they are recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in fair value include the
interest and dividend component. Fair value is not reduced
by transaction costs incurred on sale or disposal.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

= Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: liabilities
recognised in this line item of the statement of financial
position are measured after their acquisition at amortised
cost, which is determined in accordance with the effective
interest rate method.

= Financial liabilities held for trading: instruments are included
in this category when the Andbank Group's objective is to
generate profits through purchasing and selling these
instruments.

After their initial recognition these financial instruments are
measured at fair value and changes in their value (gains or
losses) are recognised at their net amount in Gains (losses) on
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, net on the income statement.

(ii). Impairment of financial assets

The impairment model also applies to financial assets at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, but not to equity investments and
financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments that can
be unilaterally revoked by the Bank. Likewise, the business
model excludes all financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

When measuring financial assets or financial liabilities it will
always be considered whether they are held for trading or whether
they are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost or
financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, separating the equity instruments
designated as such from the remaining financial assets.

IFRS 9 classifies financial instruments into three categories,
depending on the performance of their credit risk from initial
recognition. The first category includes transactions when they
are initially recognised (Stage 1), the second category includes
transactions for which a significant rise in the credit risk since
initial recognition has been identified (Stage 2) and the third
category includes credit-impaired transactions (Stage 3).

The calculation of credit risk coverage in each of these three
categories is done differently. A 12-month expected credit loss
must be recognised for transactions classified in the first of
the aforementioned categories, whilst estimated credit losses
for the whole of the expected remaining life of the transactions
must be recognised for the transactions classified in the other
two categories.

IFRS 9 differentiates between the following concepts of
expected credit loss:

= 12-month expected credit losses: Are the portion of expected
credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date of the financial
statements; and

= Life-time expected credit losses: Are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument.

(iii). Transfers and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities

A financial asset is fully or partially derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or when the asset is transferred to a third party outside
the entity. Likewise, the derecognition of financial assets in
those circumstances in which the Andbank Group retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows only takes place
when the contractual obligations to pay the cash flows to one
or more recipients have been assumed and the following
requirements are met:

= Payment of the cash flows is conditional on their prior
collection;



= The Andbank Group is unable to sell or pledge the financial
asset, and

Cash flows collected on behalf of eventual recipients are
remitted without material delay and the Andbank Group is not
entitled to reinvest such cash flows. This criteria is not
applied in the case of investments in cash or cash equivalents
made by the Andbank Group during the settlement period
from the collection date to the date of required remittance to
the eventual recipients, provided that the interest earned on
such investments is passed to the eventual recipients.

The accounting treatment of transfers of assets depends on
the extent to which the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets are transferred: In this case:

= |f the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred substantially, (as in the case of unconditional
sales, sales of financial assets under an agreement to
repurchase them at their fair value at the date of repurchase,
sale of financial assets with a purchased call option or written
put option that is deeply out of the money, securitisation of
assets in which the transferor does not retain a subordinated
debt or grant any credit enhancement to new holders, inter
alia), the transferred financial asset is derecognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and any right or
obligation retained or created in the transfer is recognised
simultaneously.

If the risks and rewards inherent to ownership of the
transferred financial asset are substantially retained (such as
in the case of financial assets sold under an agreement to
repurchase them at a fixed price or at the sale price plus a
lender's return, the securities loan agreements in which the
borrower is under the obligation to return these securities or
similar assets or other similar situations) they are not
derecognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and continue to be measured using the same criteria
used prior to the transfer and the following are recognised:

= An associated financial liability for an amount equal to
that of the consideration received, which is measured
subsequently at amortised cost, unless the
requirements are met for classifying it as other
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

= Income from the transferred financial asset that is not
derecognised and any expense incurred on the new

financial liability without being offset.

If all the risks and rewards associated with the transferred

financial assets are neither substantially transferred nor
retained (i.e. sale of a financial asset with a call option
acquired or put option written in or outside the market,
securitisation in which the transferor retains a subordinated
debt or other type of credit enhancement for a portion of the
transferred asset, and other similar cases) a distinction is
made between:

= |f the transferor does not retain control of the
transferred financial asset, it is derecognised from the

consolidated statement of financial position and any
right or obligation retained or created in the transfer
is recognised.

If the transferor retains control of the transferred
financial asset, it continues to recognise the asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position for an
amount equal to its exposure to changes in value and
recognises a financial liability associated with the
transferred asset. The net amount of the transferred
asset and the associated liability is the amortised cost
of the rights and obligations retained, if the asset is
measured at amortised cost; or the fair value of the
rights and obligations retained, if the transferred asset
is measured at fair value.

Likewise, financial liabilities are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligations specified in
the contract are discharged or cancelled or expire.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised
in its entirety, the financial assets obtained or financial
liabilities, including uncorrected servicing liabilities, are
recognised at fair value.

(iv). Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and
consequently are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the net amount, only when the Andbank
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. So that the
Andbank Group has the legally enforceable right, it must not
be contingent on a future event and must be legally enforceable
in the normal course of business, the event of default, or in the
event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

At 31 December 2022 there are no offset financial asset and
financial liability positions.

(v). Hedge accounting

The assets and liabilities recognised in these line items of the
consolidated statement of financial position are measured at
fair value.

Changes arising subsequent to the designation of the hedge,
in the measurement of financial instruments designated as
hedged items and financial instruments designated as
accounting hedges, are recognised as follows:

= In the case of fair value hedges, the differences arising in the
fair value of the derivatives and hedged instrument
attributable to the hedged risk, are recognised directly under
Gains or losses from hedge accounting, net on the
consolidated income statement; using as a balancing entry
the headings of the consolidated statements of financial
position where the hedging item is recognised (Derivatives -
hedge accounting) or the hedged item, where applicable.
Almost all of the hedges made by the Andbank Group are
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interest rate hedges for which their valuation differences are
recognised under Interest income or Income expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

When hedging the fair value of interest rate risk of a portfolio
of financial instruments or own debt (macro hedges), gains or
losses arising from the valuation of the hedging instrument
are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement
and gains or losses arising from the valuation of the fair value
of the hedged item (attributable to hedged risk) are also
recognised in the consolidated income statement (in both
cases under Gains or losses from hedge accounting, net)
using as a balancing entry the asset and liability headings
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of
interest rate risk in the consolidated statements of financial
position, where applicable.

For cash flow hedges, the differences in value arising in the
effective portion of the hedged items are temporarily
recognised under Accumulated other comprehensive income
- Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - Hedging
derivatives. Cash flow hedges on the consolidated
statements of financial position, with a balancing entry in
Derivatives - hedge accounting under assets or liabilities on
the consolidated statements of financial position, where
applicable. These differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement under Interest income or
Interest expenses when the losses or gains on the hedged
item are recognised in profit or loss, when the foreseen
transactions are performed or on the maturity date of the
hedged item. Almost all of the Andbank Group's hedges are
interest rate hedges and therefore, differences in value are
recognised under Interest income or Interest expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Differences in value of the hedging instrument corresponding
to the non-effective portion of the cash flow hedging
operations are recognised directly under Gains or losses from
hedge accounting, net in the consolidated income statement.

For hedging of net investments in foreign operations, the
differences in value arising in the effective portion of the
hedged items are recognised temporarily in Accumulated
other comprehensive income - Items that may be reclassified
to profit or loss - Hedge of net investments in foreign
operations on the consolidated statements of financial
position, with a balancing entry under Derivatives - hedge
accounting in assets or liabilities of the consolidated
statements of financial position, where applicable. These
differences in value are recognised under Exchange
differences, net on the consolidated income statement when
the foreign investment is disposed of or derecognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

(vi). Fair value of financial instruments

All financial instruments are classified in one of the following
input levels based on the methodology used to obtain their
fair value:

= Level 1: Based on quoted prices in active markets.

= Level 2: Using valuation techniques in which the inputs
considered correspond to directly or indirectly observable
market data or quoted prices in active markets for similar
instruments.

= Level 3: Using valuation techniques where some of the
significant inputs are not derived from directly observable
market data.

Process of determining the fair value

The process for determining the fair value established by
the Andbank Group ensures that assets and liabilities are
adequately measured. The Andbank Group has set up a
structure of committees in charge of proposing and
validating the contracting of financial instruments on the
market. Market inputs and other parameters and
methodologies used to measure and quantify risks, as well
as the conditioning factors for recognising transactions
and possible impacts of an accounting, legal or tax nature
are subject to analysis prior to authorisation by the areas
in charge. Issues relating to the measurement of derivative
instruments and fixed income instruments are the
responsibility of an independent and organisational unit
located within the Middle Office department. The members
of this unit report the decisions made to the management
area where the new product is to be contracted. Without
jeopardising its autonomy and independence in decision
making with regard to the measurement and quantification
of risks, this analysis involves contrasting, reconciling and,
where possible, agreement with the business areas.

For the Andbank Group, the majority of the financial
instruments recognised at fair value have as an objective
benchmark for determining their fair value, quoted prices
on active markets (Level 1) and therefore, in order to
determine their fair value the price which would be paid in
an organised, transparent and deep market would be used
(quoted price or market price). In general, this level would
include debt securities in a liquid market, quoted equity
instruments and derivatives traded on organised markets,
as well as investment funds.

The fair value of those instruments classified in Level 2 for
which no directly observable market price exists, is estimated
based on recent quoted prices of similar instruments and
valuation models which have been sufficiently tried and
trusted by the international financial community, taking into
consideration the specific features of the instrument to be
valued and, above all, the different types of associated risk.
Almost all financial instruments recognised as trading
derivatives and hedging derivatives are measured in
accordance with the criteria set out for Level 2.

In order to obtain the fair value of the other financial
instruments classified in Level 3, for the valuation no
directly observable market data exists, and alternative
techniques are used, including the request of the price
from the trading entity or the use of market parameters
corresponding to instruments with a risk profile similar to
the instrument subject to valuation, adjusted for the
purpose of obtaining the different intrinsic risks.



For unquoted equity instruments classified in Level 3, it is
considered that their cost of acquisition, reduced by any
impairment loss obtained based on publicly available
information is the best estimate of their fair value.

Valuations obtained for internal models could differ if
other methods or assumptions had been applied in the
interest rate risk, credit risk spreads, market risk, currency
risk or in the corresponding matching and volatility.
Nevertheless, the directors of the Andbank Group consider
that the models and techniques applied adequately reflect
the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as well as the results generated by these financial
instruments.

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value which, unless there is evidence to the contrary,
equals the transaction price.

Subsequently, on a specific date, the fair value is taken to
be the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or
a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm's length transaction. The most objective
benchmark for the fair value of a financial instrument is the
quoted price in an active, transparent and deep market, for
which the quoted price or market price is used.

If there is no market price, the fair value is estimated
based on the price of recent transactions involving similar
instruments and, failing that, on models that have been
adequately tested and recognised by the international
financial community. Consideration must always be given
to the specific nature of the instrument to be valued and,
in particular, to the different types of risk associated with
the instrument.

Except for trading derivatives, all the variations in the
value of financial instruments due to the accrual of interest
and similar items, are recognised under Interest and
similar income or Interest and similar charges, where
applicable, in the income statement for the year in which
the accrual takes place. Dividends received from other
companies are recognised as Dividend income in the
consolidated income statement of the year when the right
to receive them arises.

Transfers between levels

In accordance with international standards, classification
levels established based on the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the methodology to
calculate the fair value must be reviewed periodically. The
criteria applied to revalue the portfolio is reviewed at least
every month and two circumstances could arise:

= Improvements to the valuation level of financial
instruments as a result of having obtained prices
published by market price contributors or because the
quality of the price published has improved.

= Worsening of the valuation level of financial instruments
as a result of the market price contributors having

ceased to publish prices or because the quality of the
price published has worsened.

Sensitivity analysis

In order to determine whether a significant variation arises
in the value of financial instruments classified in Level 3, as
a result of changes to one or more unobservable market
inputs which reflect reasonably probable alternative
valuations, the Andbank Group has performed an analysis
of the most significant instruments and no substantial
alterations to the values obtained have come to light. (See
note 38 on risk management).

Credit valuation adjustments.

The credit valuation adjustment (CVA) is an adjustment
to the valuation of over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives
as a result of the risk associated with credit exposure
of each counterparty.

The CVA is calculated taking into consideration the
expected exposure with each counterparty in each
future term, with the CVA for a certain counterparty
being equal to the sum of CVA for all the terms. The
adjustments to be made are calculated using an
estimate of the exposure at impairment, the probability
of impairment and the loss given impairment for all the
derivatives on any underlying, at legal entity level with
which the Andbank Group has exposure.

The data required to calculate the probability of
impairment and the loss given impairment arise from
credit markets (credit default swaps), applying that of
the Bank in cases where it exists. For those cases in
which this information is not available, the Andbank
Group carries out an exercise which takes into
consideration, inter alia, the sector and rating of the
counterparty to assign probabilities of both probability
of impairment and loss given impairment, calibrated
directly to market or with an adjustment market factor
for the probability of impairment and historical
expected loss.

The debit valuation adjustment (DVA) is a valuation
adjustment similar to the CVA, but in this case it arises
as aresult of the Bank's own risk, which is assumed for
those counterparties which have exposure with OTC
derivatives. Likewise, the DVA is calculated as the
result of the expected negative exposure given the
probability of impairment and multiplying the result by
the loss given impairment of the Andbank Group. The
Group has a residual DVA/CVA as all the derivatives are
collateralised or are secured by guarantees, as our
potential exposure with each counterparty is
collateralised or a guarantee is required to cover this
counterparty risk.

The credit spread at a certain term can be expressed
as the result between the probability of impairment in
this term and the loss given impairment.
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=c. Equity instruments issued

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets or an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Therefore, to be classified as such, an instrument
must meet both of the following conditions:

= There is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity; or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable (to the issuer of
the instrument).

If a derivative can or may be settled in the issuer's own equity
instruments then it is a derivative for which the issuer is
obliged to deliver a fixed number of own equity instruments; or
a derivative that will only be settled by the issuer by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Therefore, an instrument is considered to be a financial
liability if:

= There is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another entity;

= There is a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable (to the issuer of the
instrument) or;

= |[tis anon-derivative for which the issuer is obliged to deliver
a variable number of its own equity instruments; or

= A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

On the contrary, if these four conditions are not met, the
instrument will be classified as an equity instrument because
as set out in IAS 32 an equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

=d. Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due under contractual terms, irrespective of the way in which
the obligation is instrumented, whether a guarantee, financial
guarantee, insurance contract or credit derivative.

Financial guarantees are all those which directly or indirectly
guarantee debt instruments such as loans, credits, finance lease
operations and late payment of all kinds of debts.

Guarantees or guarantee contracts are insurance contracts
which include the obligation to reimburse a beneficiary in the
event that a specific obligation different to a specific debtor's

payment obligation is not met, i.e. guarantees to secure
participation in auctions and tenders, irrevocably formalised
guarantee promises or any other technical guarantee.

All these operations are disclosed in a memorandum item to the
statement of financial position, under Contingent exposure.

Upon formalising financial guarantees and guarantee contracts
they are recognised at fair value plus transaction costs,
understood as the premium received plus the present value of
future cash flows under Loans and receivables - Debt securities
with a balancing entry under Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost - Other financial liabilities or under Other
liabilities, respectively. Changes to the fair value of the contracts
are recognised as finance income in the consolidated
income statement.

Financial guarantees and guarantee contracts, regardless of the
guarantor, instrumentation or other circumstances, are reviewed
periodically so as to determine the credit risk to which they are
exposed and, if appropriate, to estimate the provision amount.
The credit risk is determined by application of criteria similar to
those established for quantifying impairment losses on debt
instruments measured at amortised cost.

Provisions created for these contracts are recognised under
Provisions - Provisions for contingent exposures and
commitments.

Should it be necessary to set up a specific provision for financial
guarantee contracts, the corresponding fees and commissions
pending accrual are reclassified from Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost - Other financial liabilities to
Provisions - Provisions for contingent exposures and
commitments.

Financial guarantees received

The Andbank Group has not received significant guarantees for
which it is authorised to sell or pledge, unless non-payment by
the holder of the guarantee has arisen, except for those
pertaining to the treasury business.

=e. Foreign currency and functional currency transactions

The Andbank Group's functional and presentation currency is
the Euro. Therefore, all balances and transactions denominated
in currencies other than the Euro are deemed to be
denominated in foreign currency. Functional currency is
understood to be the currency of the main economic
environment in which the Andbank Group operates. Depending
on the country, the functional currency could differ from the
Euro. The presentation currency is that which the Andbank
Group uses to prepare its financial statements.

All foreign currency transactions are recognised on initial
recognition applying the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and foreign currency.

At the end of each reporting period foreign currency monetary
items are converted into Euros using the average exchange



rate of the spot currency market corresponding to each
year end.

Forward contracts in foreign currencies, which are not hedges,
are valued at the forward currency market exchange rates at
reporting date.

The exchange rates used to convert the foreign currency
balances to Euros are the market rates at 31 December of
each year.

The exchange differences produced when converting the
balances in foreign currency to the functional currency of the
Andbank Group are generally recognised under Exchange
differences (net) in the consolidated income statement.

The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries in currencies other
than the Euro have been converted to Euros using the market
exchange rate in force at the statement of financial position
date, except for non-monetary items valued at historical cost,
and the profit/loss for the year of subsidiaries have been
converted into Euros using the average exchange rate for
the period.

Although differences between domestic and foreign currencies
are usually reflected in profit/loss for the year, in certain
circumstances they are recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income:

=Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

= A financial liability designated for hedging investments in a
foreign transaction, taking into consideration that this
hedging is considered effective.

= Cash flow hedges provided that it is considered as
effective hedging.

=f. Recognition of income and expenses.

The most significant criteria used by the Andbank Group to
recognise its income and expenses are summarised as follows:

Interest income and expenses, dividends and similar items

Interest income, interest expenses and similar items are
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method, independently of when the associated cash or
financial flows arise. Interest accrued on receivables classified
as doubtful, including those associated with country risk, is
credited to income when collected, as an exception to the
general rule. Dividends received from other companies are
recognised as income when the right to receive them arises,
i.e. when the dividend payment is officially declared by the
company's governing body.

Fees and commissions
The recognition of income and expenses for fees and

commissions in the consolidated income statement varies
according to the nature of such items.

= Financial fees and commissions, such as loan arrangement
fees, are a part of the integral return or effective cost of a
financial transaction and are recognised under the same
headings as the finance income or costs, i.e. Interest income
and Interest expenses. These fees and commissions, which
are collected in advance, are recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the life of the transaction. For
financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or
loss the fees and commission are recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Non-financial fees and commissions deriving from the
provision of services are recognised under Fee and
commission income and Fee and commission expenses over
the period in which the service is provided, except for those
relating to services provided in a single act, which are
accrued when the single act is carried out.

Non-finance income and expense

These are recognised for accounting purposes on an
accrual basis.

Deferred collections and payments.

These are recognised for accounting purposes at the amount
resulting from discounting the expected cash flows at
market rates.

sg.Investment funds, pension funds and other managed
equity.

Investment funds and pension funds managed by the
consolidated companies are not recognised in the Andbank
Group's consolidated statement of financial position because
the fund assets are owned by third parties. Fees and
commissions accrued during the year for this activity are
recognised under Fees and Commissions received in the
consolidated income statement.

The consolidated statement of financial position does not
include other assets managed by the consolidated companies
which are owned by third parties and for which a fee is obtained
for their management.

sh. Employee benefits.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
considered as an expense in the consolidated income
statement. Contributions paid in advance are recognised as an
asset as it is understood that reimbursement by part of the
funds or a reduction in future payments could take place.

This includes all the types of consideration given in exchange
for the services rendered by Andbank Group employees or for
termination benefits. They can be classified into
three categories:

= Short-term employee benefits.
= Post-employment benefits.

= Other long-term employee benefits.
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Short-term employee benefits

These reflect benefits to employees, which differ from
termination benefits, which are expected to be settled wholly
before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related services. They
include wages and salaries and social security contributions,
paid annual leave and paid sick leave or bonuses and non-
monetary benefits for employees.

The cost of services rendered is recognised under
Administrative expenses - Staff expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Credit facilities granted to employees under market conditions
are considered as non-monetary remuneration and are
estimated as the difference between the market conditions
and conditions agreed with the employees. This difference is
recognised under Administrative expenses - Staff expenses
with a balancing entry under Interest and similar income in the
consolidated income statement.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are those benefits that the Andbank
Group has assumed with its employees and which will be
settled at the end of their employment with the Andbank Group.
They include retirement benefits, e.g. pensions and lump sum
payments on retirement and other post-employment benefits
such as post-employment life insurance and post-employment
medical care.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits, such as commitments with
early retired personnel (those who have ceased to render
services in the Bank but who, without being legally retired,
continue with economic rights until being legally retired) and
other similar items are recognised, where applicable, with the
exception of actuarial gains and losses which are recognised
under Provisioning expense in the consolidated
income statement.

si. Income tax

On 1 December 2011 the General Council of the Principality
of Andorra approved Law 17/2011 of 1 December 2011
amending Law 95/2010 of 29 December 2010 on income tax
(published in edition 80 of the Official Gazette of the
Principality of Andorra (BOPA), dated 28 December 2011).
This Law came into force the day after it was published in the
BOPA and applies to taxation periods starting after 1 January
2012. The Parent pays tax at a rate of 10%.

On 13 June 2012 the Andorran Government approved the
Regulation regulating Law 95/2010 of 29 December 2010 on
income tax and Law 96/2010 of 29 December 2010 on
taxation of economic activities, which sets out the formal
obligations of the parties required to pay these taxes as well
as the system for managing, settling and monitoring the
aforementioned taxes.

Payment on account is calculated by applying 50% to the net
tax payable for the prior year.

Taxable income is determined using the direct determination
method and is calculated by adjusting the accounting profit, in
accordance with the Accounting Plan for the Financial Sector,
applying the principles and criteria of classification, valuation
and temporary recognition set out in the requirements of the
Income tax law, which permit off-balance sheet adjustments.
Income tax expense represents the sum of the income tax
expense for the year and the effect of the changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities and tax credits.

Both positive and negative off-balance sheet tax adjustments
can be permanent or temporary according to whether they are
reversed or not in subsequent tax periods. The income tax
expense for each year is calculated based on profit before tax,
adjusted for permanent differences with fiscal criteria and less
any applicable tax credits and deductions. The tax effects of
temporary differences, unused credits for tax losses and rights
to deductions and credits pending application are included,
where applicable, in the corresponding consolidated statement
of financial position captions, classified on the basis of the
term according to the forecast review or realisation period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities include temporary
differences identified as those amounts which are payable or
recoverable for differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax value, as well as tax loss
carryforwards and credits for tax credits not applicable for tax
purposes. These amounts are recognised by applying the
temporary difference or credit at the tax rates at which they
are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets identified with temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits are only
recognised to the extent that it is considered probable that the
Bank has future taxable profit against which they can
be utilised.

At each reporting date, recognised deferred tax assets and
liabilities are reviewed for the purpose of verifying that they
remain effective and the appropriate corrections are made on
the basis of the results of the analysis carried out.

This expense is recognised under Expenses or income due to
income tax on continuing operations in the income statement,
for the amount accrued during the year, and in the statement
of financial position under Tax assets for the amount payable
and the amount of withholdings and payments on account.

sj. Indirect tax on goods delivered, services rendered and
imports

Inits session held on 21 June 2012 the General Council of the
Principality of Andorra approved the Law governing indirect
general taxation (IGl) which entered into force on 1 January
2013. This tax is levied on goods delivered, service rendered
and imports made by onerous contract in Andorra by business
people or professionals usually or occasionally as part of their
economic activity, irrespective of the purpose or the results



achieved in the economic activity or in each particular
transaction, including the condition of importer.

The general tax rate is 4.5%, with a reduced rate of 1% and
anincreased rate of 9.5%, which is only applied to banking and
financial services rendered.

The fifth additional provision to Law 11/2012 governing
Indirect General Tax approved by Law 10/2014 of 3 June
2014 amending Law 11/2012, stipulates a special tax regime
for the financial sector to which banks and non-banking
specialised credit institutions carrying out activities subject to
the increased tax rate stipulated in article 60 of the Law must
adhere. This special regime entered into force on 1 July 2014.
This regime restricts the deduction of input tax to a maximum
amount equivalent to 10% of the output tax at a rate of 9.5%
for the rendering of bank and financial services.

The settlement period depends on the annual net turnover for
all of the activities carried out by the tax payer in the
immediately previous year. Payments can be made half-yearly,
quarterly or monthly. Tax payers have to determine the tax debt
in each settlement period, reducing the general indirect tax
payable during the period by the general indirect tax
instalments receivable, which are deductible in nature. The
entry into force of Law 11/2012 of 21 June 2012 governing
Indirect General Tax and subsequent amendments repeals the
Law governing indirect taxation on the rendering of banking
and financial services of 14 May 2002.

=k. Non-resident income tax

In accordance with Law 94/2010 of 29 December 2010 on
non-resident income tax (hereinafter Law 94/2010) which
taxes the income obtained in Andorra by individuals and
entities considered by law as non-resident for tax purposes,
the Andbank Group companies resident for tax purposes in
Andorra are subject to withholding and has applied withholding
of 10% on non-resident suppliers of services since 1 April
2011, the enactment date of this law. On 1 December 2011
the General Council of the Principality of Andorra approved
Law 18/2011 of 1 December 2011 amending Law 94/2010
which will be applicable as of 1 January 2012.

The Andbank Group recognises transitory balances
corresponding to personal income tax collected from non-
residents under Other liabilities/Taxes/Tax collection accounts,
provided that payment has not been definitively made to the
corresponding authority.

al. Law 5/2014 of 24 April 2014 on personal income tax

On 24 April 2014 the General Council of the Principality of
Andorra approved Law 5/2014 on personal income tax which
entered into force on 1 January 2015. This law constitutes a
basic pillar of the Principality of Andorra's economic opening
process, to the extent that it involves the creation of personal
income tax which is compatible with that existing in
neighbouring countries, the European Union and the OECD.

This tax is levied, inter alia, on the savings of taxpayers and
individuals, specifically interest and similar income
(investment yield), as well as capital gains or losses at a tax
rate of 10%.

The Andbank Group recognises transitory balances
corresponding to personal income tax collected under Other
liabilities/Taxes/Tax collection accounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position, provided that payment has
not been definitively made to the corresponding authority.

=m. Tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities include
temporary differences which are defined as the amounts to be
settled or recovered in future periods arising from differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and their
corresponding tax bases (tax value), as well as unused tax
losses and unused tax credits and tax rebates not applied.
These amounts are recognised by applying to each temporary
difference the tax rate at which they are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Tax assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
include the amount of all the assets of a tax nature,
differentiating between: Current tax assets (amounts
recoverable for taxes in the next twelve months) and Deferred
tax assets (the amounts of taxes recoverable in future periods,
including those deriving from unused tax losses or tax credits).
Tax liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position include the amount of all the liabilities of a tax nature,
except for provisions for taxes, differentiating between:
Current tax liabilities (amount to be settled in the next twelve
months for income tax in respect of the taxable profit for the
period and other taxes) and Deferred tax liabilities (which
represent income taxes payable in future periods).

Deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or
jointly-controlled entities are recognised, except if the
Andbank Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference and, moreover, it is not probable that
the difference will reverse in the future. Deferred tax assets
are only recognised provided that it is probable that the
consolidated entities will have sufficient taxable income
against which they can be utilised and that they do not arise
from the initial recognition (in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable income.

At each reporting date, the Andbank Group reviews recognised
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the purpose of verifying
that they remain effective and the appropriate adjustments are
made on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.
In those circumstances in which it is uncertain how a specific
requirement of the tax law applies to a particular transaction
or circumstance, and the acceptability of the definitive tax
treatment depends on the decisions taken by the relevant
taxation authorities in the future, the entity recognises and
measures current and deferred tax assets and liabilities, where
applicable, considering whether it is probable or not that the
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taxation authorities will accept a certain uncertain tax
treatment, then the valuation of the corresponding tax assets
or liabilities reflects the amounts that the entity intends to
recover from (pay to) to the taxation authorities.

Income or expenses recognised directly in equity that do not
increase or decrease taxable income are accounted for as
temporary differences.

=n. Tangible assets

Tangible assets include buildings, land, furniture, vehicles, IT
equipment and other installations acquired under ownership or
under finance lease. Tangible assets are disclosed in the
consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
Tangible assets and Investment property.

Tangible assets include those for own use and assets under
operating lease. Tangible assets for own use include assets,
that the Andbank Group has for present or future administrative
uses or for the production or supply of goods, that are expected
to be used for more than one financial year.

Tangible assets are normally recognised at acquisition cost
less accumulated depreciation and any adjustment resulting
from a comparison of the net value with the corresponding
recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the
acquisition cost of the assets less their residual value. As an
exception, land is not depreciated because it is estimated that
it has an indefinite useful life.

Depreciation of tangible assets is charged to Amortisation and
depreciation in the consolidated income statement, and is
basically calculated using the following rates based on the
estimated useful life of each asset type:

Depreciation of tangible assets Estimated years of

useful life
Buildings
Buildings for own use 33
Installations and machinery 10
Furniture and fixtures S8
Electronic equipment 58
Other 5

At each reporting date, the Andbank Group analyses whether
there are indications that the net value of tangible assets
exceeds their corresponding recoverable amount, understood
as the higher amount between the fair value less costs to sell
and value in use.

The Andbank Group's tangible assets for own use mainly
comprise those allocated to the Bank Business cash generating
unit (CGU). This CGU is tested for impairment to verify that
sufficient cash flows are generated to support the value of the
assets included therein. If it is determined that it is necessary

to recognise an impairment loss, it is recognised under
Impairment losses on other assets (net) - Other assets in the
consolidated income statement, reducing the carrying amount
of the assets to their recoverable amount. After recognition of
the impairment loss, future depreciation charges are adjusted
in proportion to the adjusted carrying amount and the
remaining useful life.

Similarly, when it can be observed that the value of the assets
has been recovered, the Andbank Group recognises the
reversal of the impairment loss recognised in prior periods and
adjusts the future depreciation charges accordingly. Under no
circumstances may the reversal of an impairment loss on an
asset increase its carrying amount above the carrying amount
it would have if no impairment losses had been recognised in
previous years.

Once a year, or when circumstances make it advisable, the
estimated useful lives of tangible assets are reviewed and any
necessary adjustments made to the depreciation to be charged
to the consolidated income statement in future financial years.

Upkeep and maintenance expenses are charged to
Administrative expenses - Other general administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Likewise,
operating income on investment property is recognised under
Other operating income in the consolidated income statement,
whilst associated operating expenses are recognised under
Other operating expenses.

After initial recognition of the asset, only those costs incurred
which will generate future economic benefits, which can be
qualified as probable, and for which the amount of the
aforementioned costs can be reliably measured are capitalised.
In this regard, costs of day-to-day servicing are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Replacements of tangible assets that qualify for capitalisation
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
items replaced. Where the cost of the replaced items has not
been depreciated independently and it is not possible to
determine the respective carrying amount, the replacement
cost is used as indicative of the cost of items at the time of
acquisition or construction.

Increases in the carrying amount of each tangible asset item,
as a result of the revaluation, are accounted for in other
comprehensive income. However, the increase is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset. The revaluation decreases of each
tangible asset item are recognised in other comprehensive
income up to the amount of any revaluation previously
recognised for each asset. Any excess is recognised in profit
or loss.

Revaluations accounted for in other comprehensive income are
transferred to reserves upon sale or disposal of each asset.

Disposals

The Andbank Group recognises the disposal of tangible assets
when they are disposed of or when it is expected that no future



economic benefits will be received for their use or disposal. The
disposal date is the date on which the purchaser acquires
control of the assets as indicated in the accounting policy on
Revenues from customer contracts. The amount of the
consideration for the disposal of tangible assets and the
recognition of subsequent changes thereto, is determined by
applying the criteria indicated in the accounting policy on
Revenues from customer contracts.

The Andbank Group recognises the disposal of the real estate
investment when it is disposed of or when it is expected that
no future economic benefits will be received for its disposal.
The disposal date is the date on which the purchaser acquires
control of the investment as indicated in the accounting policy
on Revenues from customer contracts. The amount of the
consideration for the disposal of the real estate investment and
the recognition of subsequent changes, is determined by
applying the criteria indicated in the accounting policy on
Revenues from customer contracts.

=0. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance which are acquired from third parties or
which are developed internally.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents a payment made by the acquirer in
anticipation of future economic benefits from assets that are
not able to be individually identified and separately recognised.
Goodwill is only recognised when the business combinations
are made onerously.

In business combinations goodwill arises as the positive
difference between:

= The consideration given

= plus, where applicable, the fair value of the interest held in
the assets and liabilities of the acquiree and the amount of
the non-controlling interests.

= The fair value net of identified assets acquired less
liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is recognised under Intangible assets - Goodwill and
is measured at present value based on the closing
exchange rate.

Under no circumstances is goodwill amortised.

At each reporting date or when there are indications of
impairment, an estimate is made of whether impairment has
arisen which reduces the recoverable amount to under the net
costrecognised and, if this is the case, they are written off with
a balancing entry under Impairment losses on other assets (net)
- Goodwill and other intangible assets on the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses are not subject to
subsequent reversal.

Other intangible assets

This item includes identifiable intangible assets, including
intangible assets arising from business combinations and IT
software.

Other intangible assets can be of indefinite useful life when,
based on the assessments made of all the relevant factors, it
is concluded that there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which it is expected that net cash inflows will be generated
for the Andbank Group. In the remaining cases, intangible
assets are of finite useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
However, at each reporting date or when there are indications
of impairment the Andbank Group reviews the remaining useful
lives in order to ensure that they are still indefinite or, on the
contrary, it proceeds accordingly.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on the
basis of their useful life, applying criteria similar to those
adopted for the depreciation of tangible assets.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised with a
balancing entry in Amortisation and depreciation on the income
statement. The useful life of intangible asset items ranges
between five and nineteen years.

The amortisation expense is recognised under Amortisation
and depreciation in the consolidated income statement.

Losses arising on the recognised value of these assets,
whether of indefinite or finite useful life, are recognised with a
balancing entry in Impairment losses on other assets (net) -
Goodwill and other intangible assets in the consolidated
income statement. The criteria to recognise impairment of
these assets and, where applicable, recovery of impairment
losses recognised in prior years are similar to those applied for
tangible assets.

Disposals

The Andbank Group recognises the disposal of intangible
assets when they are disposed of or when it is expected that
no future economic benefits will be received for their use or
disposal. The disposal date is the date on which the purchaser
acquires control of the assets as indicated in the accounting
policy. The amount of the consideration for the disposal of
intangible assets and the recognition of subsequent changes,
is determined by applying the criteria indicated in the
accounting policy on Revenues from customer contracts.

=p. Non-current assets held for sale and liabilities associated
with non-current assets held for sale

The assets recognised in this line item of the consolidated
statement of financial position include the carrying amount of
individual items or those integrated in a disposal group or which
form part of a business unit to be disposed of (discontinued
operations), with the sale of the assets being highly probable in
their present condition within a period of one year from the date
of the consolidated statement of financial position. The recovery
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of the carrying amount of these items shall foreseeably take place
through the price obtained on their disposal.

Specifically, real estate assets or other non-current assets
received to fully or partially cancel the payment obligations of
debtors for loan operations are considered as Non-current assets
held for sale, except if it is decided to continue to use these
assets.

Symmetrically, Liabilities associated with non-current assets held
for sale in the consolidated statement of financial position include
balances payable originating from the disposal groups and
discontinued operations.

Non-current assets held for sale are generally measured, initially
and subsequently, at the lower of their fair value less costs to sell
and carrying amount calculated at the date they were assigned
to this category.

The carrying amount at the acquisition date of non-current assets
held for sale arising from foreclosures or recoveries is their
amortised cost, defined as the balance receivable for loans/
credits upon cancellation net of estimated impairment which will
be at least 5%. The fair value of non-current assets held for sale
arising from foreclosures or recoveries corresponds to the market
appraisal value of the asset received in its present condition less
costs to sell.

Any foreclosed assets which remain in the consolidated
statement of financial position for a period of time longer than
initially foreseen for their sale, shall be analysed individually to
recognise any impairment loss arising subsequent to their
acquisition. Impairment testing shall take into consideration, in
addition to the reasonable offers received in the period prior to
the sale price offered, the difficulties in finding purchasers, as
well as, in the case of tangible assets, any physical deterioration
which could have impaired their value.

At 31 December 2022 the fair value of these assets has been
determined using appraisals.

Available-for-sale non-current assets are not depreciated whilst
they remain in these categories.

Impairment losses of an asset or disposal group, due to reductions
in their carrying amount to their fair value (less costs to sell) are
recognised under Gains(Losses) on non-current assets held for
sale not classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated
income statement. Gains on a non-current asset held for sale due
to subsequent increases in fair value (less costs to sell) increase
its carrying amount and are recognised in the same line item of
the consolidated income statement up to an amount equal to that
of the previously recognised impairment losses.

uq. Leases
The single lessee accounting model requires that assets and

liabilities for all lease contracts are recognised. The standard
presents two exceptions to the recognition of lease assets and

liabilities, which can be applied in the case of short-term leases
and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The
lessee must recognise a right-of-use asset which represents
its right to use the leased asset that is recognised under
Tangible assets - Property, plant and equipment and Tangible
assets - Investment property on the statement of financial
position (see note 13) and a lease liability that represents its
obligation to make lease payments which are recognised under
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - Other
financial liabilities on the statement of financial position (see
note 18).

At the lease commencement date the lease liability represents
the present value of all the outstanding lease payments
Liabilities recognised in this line item of the statement of
financial position are measured, after their initial recognition,
at amortised cost, in accordance with the effective interest
rate method. The discount rate applied to future payments is
0.76%. Right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability; any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; any initial direct costs incurred; and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee such as costs
relating to the dismantling and removing of the underlying
asset. The assets recognised in this line item of the statement
of financial position are measured, after their initial recognition,
at cost, less:

= Any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses; and

= Any corresponding remeasurement of the lease liability.

Interest expense on the lease liability is recognised in the income
statement under Interest expense (see note 28). Variable lease
payments not included in the initial measurement of the lease
liability are recognised under Administrative expenses - Other
administrative expenses (see note 31).

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis on the
acquisition cost of the assets over the lease term. Depreciation
charges on tangible assets are recognised under Depreciation
on the consolidated income statement.

In the event of opting for one of the two exceptions for not
recognising the corresponding right-of-use and liability in the
statement of financial position, lease payments are recognised
in the income statement over the lease term or on a straight-line
basis or another basis that best represents the structure of the
lease transaction under Other operating expenses.

Income from subleasing and operating leases is recognised in the
income statement under Other operating income.

The lessor accounting model requires that, from the
commencement date, leases are classified as finance leases
when they transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. Leases that are
not finance leases are considered operating leases.



For finance leases, when the Andbank Group acts as the lessor
of an asset, the sum of the present values of the amounts
receivable by a lessor plus the guaranteed residual value, which
normally is equivalent to the price of exercising the purchase
option by the lessee at the end of the lease, is recognised as
financing to third parties, and included under Financial assets at
amortised cost on the statement of financial position.

For operating leases, if the Andbank Group acts as the lessor, the
cost of acquisition of the leased assets is recognised under
Tangible assets - Property, plant and equipment - Leased out
under operating lease on the statement of financial position.
These assets are depreciated in accordance with the policies
adopted for similar tangible assets of own use and income and
expense arising from leases are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis under Other operating income
and Other operating expenses, respectively.

In the event of sale and leaseback transactions at fair value, any
gains or losses generated on the sale, for the portion effectively
transferred, are recognised in the income statement.

=r. Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits. Contingent assets are not recognised in financial
statements since this may result in the recognition of income that
may never be realised.

Contingent assets are assessed continuously to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income
are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which
the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits has become
probable, an entity discloses the contingent asset.

=s. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Andbank Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account all risks and
uncertainties surrounding the amount to be recognised as a
provision and, where the time value of money is material, the
financial effect of discounting provided that the expenditure to
be made each period can be reliably estimated. The discount rate
is a pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money and the
specific risks for which future cash flows associated with the
provision have not been adjusted at each reporting date.

The financial effect of provisions is recognised as a finance cost
in profit or loss.

The tax effect and gains on the expected disposal of assets are
not taken into account in measuring a provision.

Rights to reimbursement from third parties of the expenditure
required to settle a provision are recognised as a separate asset
provided that it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be
received. Any income deriving from the reimbursement is
recognised in profit or loss as a reduction in the provision
expense up to the amount of the provision.

If it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle an obligation, the provision is reversed. The provision is
reversed against the income statement caption in which the
related expense was recognised, and any surplus is accounted
for in other income.

The Andbank Group's consolidated statement of financial
position includes all the significant provisions with respect to
circumstances in which it is considered that it is more likely than
not that the obligation will have to be settled. Provisions are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
according to the obligations covered, including provisions for
pensions and similar obligations, provisions for taxes and for
contingent exposures and commitments.

Provisions, which are quantified based on the best information
available regarding the success of their purpose and are re-
estimated at each reporting date, are used to cover specific
obligations for which they were originally recognised. Provisions
are fully or partially reversed when the obligations cease to exist
or decrease.

Provisions are recognised as liabilities under Provisions in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on the
covered obligations. Contingent liabilities are recognised as a
memorandum item in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

A contingent liability is recognised when a present obligation
exists but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will exist. Contingent liabilities can
perform differently than initially expected and are therefore
subject to continuous review for the purpose of determining
whether the outflow of resources becomes probable. If it is
confirmed that the outflow of resources is more likely than not to
occur, the corresponding provision is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Details of the contingent liabilities identified are as follows:

In Andorra two customers filed a claim against the Andbank
Group in relation to the early cancellation of multicurrency
facilities which, as a result of being cancelled, generated a
receivable for the Andbank Group amounting to Euros 3 million.
As part of their claim the customers have appealed against the
early cancellation of the facility and claim additional amounts for
other items. In turn, the Andbank Group lodged a counterclaim
against these customers. Due to the crossed nature of the
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claims, the Bank considers it unlikely that an adverse economic
scenario will arise.

Other minor lawsuits are underway in Spain, with overall claims
amounting to Euros 0.9 million (Euros 0.9 million at 31 December
2021), for which the Bank considers it unlikely that an adverse
economic scenario will arise.

st. Insurance transactions

The Andbank Group applies the requirements set out in IFRS 4
- Insurance contracts to all assets and liabilities in its
consolidated financial statements which derive from insurance
contracts, in accordance with the definition included in the
aforementioned standard.

The Andbank Group does not separate any deposit component
associated with insurance contracts. This separationis voluntary.
Likewise, it is estimated that the fair value of the surrender
options issued in favour of the insurance contract policyholders
have a value of nil or, on the contrary, their valuation forms part
of the value of liabilities under insurance contracts.

In accordance with IFRS, insurance entities have to carry out an
adequacy test, in relation to the contractual commitments
assumed, on the liabilities under insurance contracts recognised
in their consolidated statement of financial position.

For this purpose, the following is determined:

(i) The difference between the carrying amount of its
insurance contracts, less deferred acquisition costs or any
intangible assets related to the insurance contracts subject
to evaluation and the present value of cash flows deriving
from insurance contracts and related cash flows such as
claims handling costs, as well as cash flows resulting from
embedded options and guarantees.

(i) The difference between the carrying amount and present
value of projected cash flows from financial assets under
insurance contracts.

For the purpose of determining the present value of cash flows
from insurance contracts the same interest rate is used as that
used to estimate the present value of financial assets under
insurance contracts.

When the difference in point i) is higher than the difference in
point ii) this reflects that the provisions for insurance contracts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
are insufficient and this amount is recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the period.

Details of the main components included as technical provisions
are as follows:

= Provision for unearned premiums and unexpired risks

The provision for unearned premiums corresponds to the
portion of premiums accrued during the year which have been
charged to the period between the reporting date and the
end of the policy coverage period.

The purpose of the provision for unexpired risks is to
complement the provision for unearned premiums insofar

that its amount is insufficient to cover the valuation of all the
risks and expenses for the coverage period not elapsed at the
reporting date.

Provision for life insurance

This provision mainly comprises mathematical provisions for
insurance contracts, as well as unearned premiums of
insurance contracts with a coverage period equal to or less
than a year. Mathematical provisions represent the surplus
actuarial present value of the future obligations of subsidiary
insurance companies on that of the premiums which have to
be paid by the policyholder.

Provision for life insurance policies where the investment
risk is borne by the policyholders.

This type of provision comprises technical provisions of
insurance contracts in which the policyholder bears the risk
of the investment.

Claims provision

This includes the total outstanding obligations deriving
from claims incurred prior to the reporting date. The
Andbank Group calculates this provision as the difference
between the estimated or certain total cost of claims to be
reported, settled or paid, including external and internal
expenses of managing and processing claims and the total
amounts already paid for these claims.

Provisions for bonuses and rebates

These include the bonuses accrued in favour of insured
parties or beneficiaries still not assigned at reporting date.
They do not include the effect of assigning the portion of
underlying gains from the investment portfolio to the
policyholders.

Technical provisions for accepted reinsurance are determined
using the same criteria as that used for direct insurance.

Technical provisions for direct insurance and accepted
reinsurance are shown as Liabilities under insurance contracts
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Technical provisions linked to risks ceded to reinsurance
entities are calculated based on the reinsurance contracts
underwritten following similar criteria to those established for
direct insurance. The amount is shown as Assets under
reinsurance in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Andbank Group applies the accounting option set out in
IFRS 4 known as shadow accounting. In accordance with this
accounting option, the standard permits, but does not require
that an insurer change its accounting policies so that a
recognised but unrealised gain or loss on an asset affects
those measurements in the same way that a realised gain or
loss does. The related adjustment to the insurance liability (or
deferred acquisition costs or intangible assets) is recognised
in other comprehensive income if, and only if, the unrealised
gains or losses are recognised in other recognised income
and expenses.



su. Treasury shares

The value of net equity instruments issued by entities under
the power of group entities - basically the Bank's shares and
derivatives on shares held by certain consolidated companies
which meet the requirements to be recognised as equity
instruments are recognised, less consolidated equity, under
Capital and reserves - Treasury shares in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

These financial assets are recognised at cost of acquisition
and profit and loss generated on their disposal is credited or
charged, where applicable to Capital and reserves - Retained
earnings in the consolidated statement of financial position.

=v. Statement of changes in equity

Statements of comprehensive income

This statement presents the income and expenses recognised
as a result of Group business activity during the year, and a
distinction is made between the income and expenses
recognised in the consolidated income statement and the other
income and expenses recognised directly in consolidated equity.
Accordingly, the statement presents:

= Consolidated profit for the year

= Movement in Accumulated other comprehensive income
under consolidated equity that includes:

= The gross amount of recognised income and expenses,
distinguishing between income and expenses that can and
cannot be reclassified to profit or loss.

Income tax accrued on recognised income and expenses,
except forincome and expenses originating in investments
in associates or joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method, which are presented net.

Total consolidated recognised income and expenses,
calculated as the sum of the two items above, showing
separately the amount attributable to the Parent and that
corresponding to minority interests (non-controlling
interests).

Statement of changes in equity

This statement presents all the movements in the Andbank
Group's equity, including those originating from changes in
accounting criteria and correction of errors. The statement
shows a reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning
and end of the year of all the items forming part of consolidated
equity, and movements are grouped together, on the basis of
their nature, into the following items:

= Adjustments due to changes in accounting criteria and
correction of errors: changes in consolidated equity arising
as aresult of the retrospective restatement of the balances
in the financial statements, distinguishing those that

originate in changes in accounting policies from those
corresponding to the correction of errors.

Total recognised income and expenses: the aggregate total
of the aforementioned items recognised in the statement of
recognised income and expense.

Other changes in consolidated equity: the remaining items
recognised in consolidated equity, including increases and
decreases in capital, distribution of dividends, transactions
involving own equity instruments, own equity-based
payments, transfers between equity items and any other
increases or decreases in consolidated equity.

=sw. Statement of cash flows

The indirect method has been used when preparing the
consolidated statements of cash flows, so that based on the
Andbank Group's results, non-monetary transactions are taken
into consideration, as well as all kinds of deferred payment and
accrual items that have been or will lead to amounts collected
and paid; together with income and expenses associated with
cash flows from activities classified as investing or
financing activities.

The following terms are used in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, as defined below:

= Cash flows: Inflows and outflows of cash or cash equivalents,
which are short-term, highly liquid investments subject to a
low risk of changes in value. For this purpose, in addition to
cash in hand, deposits in central banks and demand deposits
in credit institutions are also classified as cash or cash
equivalents.

Operating activities: the Andbank Group's usual activities and
other activities that cannot be classified as investing or
financing activities.

Investing activities: the acquisition, sale or other disposal by
other means of non-current assets and other investments not
included in cash or cash equivalents in operating activities.

Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the
size and composition of the consolidated equity and liabilities
not forming part of operating activities.

No situations have arisen during the year entailing the need to
apply significant judgements to classify cash flows.

No significant transactions have been performed that have
generated cash flows that have not been reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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4. Distribution of profit/Application of 6. Financial assets and liabilities held for
Losses trading

The proposed distribution of the Parent's profit for 2022, that  Details of these line items of the consolidated statement of
the board of directors will present to the shareholders for their ~ financial position at 31 December 2022 and 31 December

approval, is as follows: 2021 are as follows:
Thousands of Euros Thousands of Euros
2022 31/12/22 31/12/21
Legal reserve 920 Financial assets held
for trading
Voluntary reserves 7,088
Dividends 5,000 Derivatives 169,897 119,575
13,008 Equity instruments 239 778
Debt securities 219,206 101,565
Application of the Parent's losses for the year ended 31
December 2021, approved by the shareholders at their general 389,342 221,918
meeting on 27 April 2022, consisted of transferring losses of
Euros 4,649 thousand to Other reserves - Prior years' losses Thousands of Euros
31/12/22 31/12/21
Financial liabilities
5.Cash, cash balances at central banks Neldfortrading
and other demand deposits Derivatives 91,691 57,847
Deposits = =
Details of cash, cash balances at central banks and other
demand deposits at 31 December 2021 and 2022 are  Dgbt securities issued - -
as follows:
Thousands of Euros Other financial liabilities = =
31/12/22 31/12/21 91,691 57,847
Cash on hand 19,024 17,642
Cash balances at 106445 279664 N 38 (Risk includ in inf .
cer] Benlks g ] ote (Risk management) includes certain information
relating to credit, liquidity and market risks assumed by the
Other demand deposits 416,230 282,092  Andbank Group in relation to the financial assets and

financial liabilities included in this category, as well as

541,699
Soinas information on the concentration of risks.

In addition, note 39 (Fair value of financial instruments)
includes information in relation to the financial instruments
for which their carrying amount coincides with their fair
value and provides a description of the valuation techniques
and input data used to measure fair value.



=a. Financial assets held for trading

A breakdown of the balance, by type of instrument and issuer, of this line item of the accompanying consolidated financial

statements, is as follows:

Derivatives
Equity instruments
Of which: at cost
Of which: credit institutions
Of which: other financial corporations
Of which: non-financial corporations
Debt securities
Central banks
General governments
Credit institutions
Other financial corporations

Non-financial corporations

31/12/22

Carrying amount

Thousands of Euros

31/12/21

Carrying amount

169,897
239

239
219,206
20,105
143,884
55,190
27
389,342

119,575
778

778
101,565
16,227
17,354
13,550
54,434
221,918

A breakdown of the balance, by financial assets held for trading secured by guarantee, of this line item of the accompanying
consolidated annual accounts, is as follows:

Financial assets held for trading
Derivatives

Equity instruments

Debt securities

Loans and advances

Thousands of Euros

31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets assets not assets assets not
pledged as pledged as pledged as pledged as
collateral for  collateral for collateral for  collateral for
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
- 169,897 - 119,575
- 239 - 778
9,667 209,539 - 101,565
9,667 379,675 - 221,918
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sb. Derivatives

The Andbank Group's derivative portfolio arises from the need to hedge the risks it incurs during the normal course of business,
as well as the commercialisation of products to customers.

A breakdown, by type of risk and type of product or market, of the fair value as well as the related notional values, of financial
trading derivatives, recognised in the accompanying statement of financial position, differentiating between contracts in
organised and non-organised markets at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Financial assets  Financial liabilities Notional

At 31 December 2022 held for trading held for trading amount
Interest rate 93,539 21,449 1,691,455
Of which: economic hedges 93,539 21,449 1,691,455
OTC other 93,539 21,449 1,691,455
Equity risk 28,379 28,378 153,825
Of which: economic hedges 28,379 28,378 153,825
OTC other 28,379 28,378 153,825
Foreign exchange and gold 15,055 7,418 733,753
Of which: economic hedges 15,055 7,418 733,753
OTC other 15,055 7,418 733,753
Credit 32,866 34,287 1,509,531
Of which: economic hedges 32,866 34,287 1,509,531
Credit default swap 32,866 34,287 1,509,531
Other 58 159 6,479
Of which: Economic hedges 58 159 6,479
Derivatives 169,897 91,692 4,095,043
Of which: OTC - Credit institutions 49,830 71,779 2,420,503
Of which: OTC - Other financial corporations 120,067 19,433 1,608,022
Of which: OTC - Other = 479 66,518

169,897 91,691 4,095,043




At 31 December 2021

Interest rate
Of which: economic hedges
OTC other

Equity risk
Of which: economic hedges
OTC other

Foreign exchange and gold
Of which: economic hedges
OTC other

Credit
Of which: economic hedges
Credit default swap

Other
Of which: Economic hedges

Derivatives
Of which: OTC - Credit institutions

Of which: OTC - Other financial corporations

Financial assets
held for trading

63,518
63,518
63,518
18,061
18,061
18,061
4,768
4,768
4,768
33,050
33,050
33,050
178
178
119,575
36,522
83,053

119,575

Financial liabilities
held for trading

5,000
5,000
5,000
16,123
16,123
16,123
5,656
5656
5656
31,011
31,011
31,011
57

57
57,847
30,053
27,794

57,847

Thousands of Euros

Notional
amount

567,181
567,181
567,181
175,880
175,880
175,880
732,128
732,128
732,128
1,213,322
1,213,322
1,213,322
53,604
53,604
2,742,115
1,738,462
1,003,653

2,742,115
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7.Non-trading financial assets
mandatorily at fair value through profit
or loss

Details of these line items of the statement of financial position
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Equity instruments 8,399 9,275
Debt securities - =
Loans and advances = -
8,399 9,275

8.Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Details of these line items of the statement of financial position
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Equity instruments = =
Debt securities 11,802 13,333
Loans and advances = -
11,802 13,333

9.Financial assets designated at fair
value through comprehensive income

Details of this line item of the accompanying statements of
financial position at 31 December 2022 and 31 December

2021 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Equity instruments 7,064 8,750
Debt securities 225,640 321,967
Loans and advances = -
232,704 330,717

Details of valuation adjustments to the financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
portfolio are shown in note 21 (Accumulated other
comprehensive income).

Note 38 (Risk management) includes certain information
relating to credit, liquidity and market risks assumed by the
Andbank Group in relation to the financial assets and financial
liabilities included in this category, as well as information on
the concentration of risks.

In addition, note 39 (Fair value of financial instruments)
includes information in relation to the financial instruments for
which their carrying amount coincides with their fair value and
provides a description of the valuation techniques and input
data used to measure fair value.



Details of financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, by type of issuer, at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Equity instruments
Credit institutions = e
Non-financial corporations 7,064 8,750
Other financial corporations - -
7,064 8,750

Debt securities

Central banks = =
General governments 63,565 133,770
Credit institutions 113,050 135,095
Other financial corporations 41119 10,678
Non-financial corporations 7,906 42,424
225,640 321,967

=a. Reclassification of financial assets between categories

The strategic initiatives designed by the Bank are based on
growth in the portfolio of investments and AUMs, and on

improving the corporate reorganisation, thus enabling recurring
profits to be optimised and synergies to be generated within
the Group.

As aresult of the design of this future strategy for the banking
activity, and in order to maintain solvency and reduce volatility
in own funds, Andbank has decided to limit use of the portfolio
at fair value through other comprehensive income, denominated
in USD, to bonds with a maximum residual maturity of three
years. Since this decision was made, none of Andbank'’s
investments in these types of securities will be able to be
managed under a business model the main objective of which
is to continue to hold assets to obtain contractual cash flows
and the sale thereof.

Andbank considers that the best option to recover the
investment held in this portfolio is to manage it under a model
that holds assets to obtain contractual cash flows.

Based on the above, Andbank has considered that a change in
business model has taken place that affects all the securities
that do not meet the characteristics required to be kept in
portfolios carried at fair value through other comprehensive
income, and therefore they must be subject to transfer to
portfolios carried at amortised cost. As set out in paragraph
B4.4.1 of the IFRS 9 application guide, this change is possible
and entails the reclassification of these assets as they do not
meet the new conditions of the business model.

On 1 April 2022, in accordance with IFRS 9, the portfolio
subject to transfer, with a carrying amount of Euros 102,110
thousand upon reclassification, was recognised at amortised
cost, as it had always been recognised. Therefore, the fair value
of the portfolio subject to transfer at that date (Euros 92,000
thousand) has been adjusted for the accumulated profit or loss
from this portfolio recognised in equity plus, where applicable,
the amounts recognised as deferred tax assets or liabilities.
Consequently, there has been no impact on profit or loss.
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10. Financial assets at amortised cost

Details of this line item of the accompanying statement of financial position, taking into consideration the balancing entry for
the financial instrument from which they originate, at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Gross carrying amount

Assets without
significant increase in
credit risk since initial

Assets with a
significant increase in
credit risk since initial

recognition, but not

Net carrying recognition credit-impaired
31 December 2022 amount (Stage 1) (Stage 2)
Debt securities 680,463 680,463 =
Central banks = = =
General governments 194,263 194,263 -
Credit institutions 277,870 277,870 -
Other financial corporations 133,990 133,990 -
Non-financial corporations 74,340 74,340 -
-
Central banks 1,029,800 1,029,800 -
Credit institutions 381,251 381,251 -
Loans and advances 2,940,509 2,750,183 178,885
General governments 13,213 13,279 -
Credit institutions 58 58 =
Other financial corporations 84,141 80,927 -
Non-financial corporations 1,164,645 1,044,221 113,635
Households 1,678,452 1,611,698 65,250
Financial assets at amortised cost 5,032,023 4,841,697 178,885




Accumulated impairment

Thousands of Euros

Credit-impaired
assets
(Stage 3)

48,181

3,544

30,585

14,052

48,181

Assets without
significant increase in
credit risk since initial

recognition
(Stage 1)

(2,279)

(66)

(325)

(936)

(952)

(2,279)

Assets with a
significant increase

in credit risk since initial
recognition, but not
credit-impaired

(Stage 2)

(18,974)

(12,274)

(6,700)

(18,974)

Credit-impaired
assets (Stage 3)

(15.487)

(5)

(10,586)

(4,896)

(15,487)
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Gross carrying amount

Assets with a

Assets without significant increase in
significant increase in credit risk since initial
credit risk since initial recognition, but not

Net carrying recognition credit-impaired
31 December 2021 amount (Stage 1) (Stage 2)
Debt securities 556,656 556,656 =
Central banks = = =
General governments 107,638 107,638 -
Credit institutions 201,369 201,369 -
Other financial corporations 170,221 170,221 -
Non-financial corporations 77,428 77,428 -
Deposits in credit institutions 485,526 485,526 -
Credit institutions 485,526 485,526 -
Loans and advances 2,469,966 2,272,727 187,686
Central banks = . =
General governments 12,525 12,125 498
Credit institutions 23 23 =
Other financial corporations 71,994 72,049 -
Non-financial corporations 993,563 833,105 152,558
Households 1,391,861 1,355,425 34,630
Financial assets at amortised cost 3,512,148 3,314,909 187,686

At 31 December 2022 assets classified as doubtful amount to Euros 48,181 thousand (Euros 49,245 thousand at 31
December 2021).

Note 38 (Risk management) includes certain information relating to interest rate, liquidity and market risks assumed by the
Andbank Group in relation to the financial assets and financial liabilities included in this category, as well as information on the
concentration of risks and credit quality.



Thousands of Euros

Accumulated impairment

Credit-impaired
assets
(Stage 3)

49,245

33,312

15,929

49,245

Assets without
significant increase in
credit risk since initial

recognition
(Stage 1)

(1,655)

(61)

(56)

(703)

(835)

(1,655)

Assets witha

significant increase
in credit risk since initial
recognition, but not

credit-impaired
(Stage 2)

(26,519)

(37)

(19,805)

(6,677)

(26,519)

Credit-impaired
assets (Stage 3)

(11,518)

(3)

(4,904)

(6,611)

(11,518)
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=a. Details of loans and receivables by sector of activity and type of product

Details of the subheadings comprising loans and receivables, by sector of activity and type of product, at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

31 December 2022 Totals Central banks
On demand and short notice (current account) 26,238 =
Credit card debt 6,487 :
Trade receivables 2,425

Finance leases -
Reverse repurchase loans -

Other term loans 2,905,359

Advances that are not loans -

Loans and advances 2,940,509 -
31 de desembre del 2021 Totals Central banks
On demand and short notice (current account) 6,496 -
Credit card debt 5,556 -

Trade receivables =
Finance leases =
Reverse repurchase loans =
Other term loans 2,457,914 =

Advances that are not loans -

Loans and advances 2,469,966 -

An essential instrument used for managing credit risk is that of ensuring that financial assets acquired or contracted by the
Andbank Group include collateral securities and other loan enhancements in addition to the debtor's personal guarantee.

The Andbank Group's policies used to analyse and select risk are defined based on the different characteristics of the
transactions, such as the purpose of the risk, counterparty, term, use of own funds, etc. Collateral securities and credit
enhancements which must be held in addition to the borrower's personal security, to be able to proceed with contracting (see
note 38(c) Credit risk management).

Collateral securities are measured based on the nature of the collateral received. Generally, collateral securities in the form of
real estate are measured at their appraisal value, calculated by independent entities.



Net carrying amount

Thousands of Euros

General Credit Other financial Non-financial
governments institutions corporations corporations Households
= 3,929 17,544 4,765
= 36 31 792 5,628
= 9 231 2,080 105
13212 13 79,950 1144229 1,667,955
13,212 58 84,141 1,164,645 1,678,453
Thousands of Euros

Net carrying amount

General Credit Other financial Non-financial
L . . Households

governments institutions corporations corporations
38 = 59 1,457 4,942
1 = 28 720 4,785
- 22 - -
12,486 = 71,907 991,386 1,382,134
. 1 - .
12,525 23 71,994 993,563 1,391,861

With a frequency of at least one year the Bank must verify the existence of indications of significant decreases in its benchmark
valuations for operations classified as standard exposure with real estate guarantees. Only in the case that evidence of losses
in value of this collateral exists or in those cases in which impairment in the debtor's solvency arises which could imply that
these guarantees could have been used, this valuation is updated based on the same criteria: collateral securities in the form
of securities quoted in active markets are measured at quoted value, adjusted by a percentage to cover any possible variations
in this market value which could jeopardise the coverage of the risk; guarantees and similar collateral used to cover credit risk
are measured, for the purpose of determining the coverage, at nominal amount which is equivalent to the covered risk;
guarantees in the form of pledged deposits are measured at the value of these deposits and in the event they are denominated
in foreign currency they are converted at the exchange rate at each valuation date.
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=h. Details of loans and advances and deposits in credit institutions based on collateral securities and personal securities

Details of loans and advances and deposits in credit institutions based on principal collateral securities and disclosure of the
percentage of coverage on the operations, at 31 December 2022 and 2021, are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

% coverage

Gross <40% or
carrying without  >40% & >60%i >80%&

31 December 2022 amount guarantee <60% <80% £100% >100%
!Dep_oshfs in central banks and credit 1411051 1,060,162 ) - 350,889 )
institutions

Central banks 1,029,800 1,029,800 - - - -
Credit institutions 381,251 30,362 = - 350,889 =
Loans and advances 2,977,249 174,685 25,341 18,962 242,305 2,515,956
Opperaiens cellsisrelEed oy lnmeEbls 1,491,687 6,073 3040 10398 122247 15349929
property

Qperations collateralised by debt securities/ 1246442 1620 21746 8477 86,440 1128159
instruments

Operations collateralised by monetary assets 81,440 9,312 555 87 33,618 37,868

Operations with no guarantee and/or personal 157680 157680 . ) ) )

collateral
Financial assets at amortised cost 4,388,300 1,234,847 25,341 18,962 593,194 2,515,956
% coverage
Gross <40% or
carrying without  >40% & >60%i >80%&

31 December 2021 amount guarantee <60% <80% £100% >100%
Deposits in credit institutions 485,526 3,779 - - 481,747 -
Credit institutions 485,526 3,779 - - 481,747 -
Loans and advances 2,509,658 155,930 3,787 19,578 262,547 2,067,816
Operations collateralised by immovable 1325779 3817 3468 8864 220780 1088850
property

Qperatioms collateralised by debt securities/ 963058 2907 304 8597 19741 931,509
instruments

Operations collateralised by monetary assets 74,008 2,393 15 2,117 22,026 47,457

Operations with no guarantee and/or personal
collateral

Financial assets at amortised cost 2,995,184 159,709 3,787 19,578 744,294 2,067,816

146,813 146,813 - = - .

At 31 December 2022, 71 % of loans and advances and deposits in credit institutions have coverage of more than 80%, whilst
at 31 December 2021, 94% of loans and advances have coverage of more than 80%.

At 31 December 2022, as part of the plan for aid and measures to mitigate the effects of COVID-19, the Andorran Government
guarantees loans for a value of Euros 16.22 million, of which the current risk is Euros 7.14 million (included in the Euros 157.7
million of transactions with third party guarantees).



11. Derivatives - Hedge accounting and Fair value changes

The balances of these line items of the accompanying statements of financial position are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Derivatives - Hedge accounting and changes in fair value 31/12/22 31/12/21
Assets 5,651 5,686
Derivatives - hedge accounting 19,180 2,955
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of interest rate risk (13,629) 2,731
Liabilities 1,032 4,928
Derivatives - hedge accounting 1,032 4,757
Fair value changes of the hedged items in portfolio hedge of interest rate risk - 171

At 31 December 2022 the Group's main hedged positions and the derivatives designated to hedge those positions correspond
to covered bonds from the financial assets at amortised cost portfolio and at fixed interest rates, using interest rate derivatives.

Note 38 (Risk management) includes certain information relating to interest rate, liquidity and market risks assumed by the
Andbank Group in relation to the financial assets and financial liabilities included in this category, as well as information on the

concentration of risks.

In addition, note 39 (Fair value of financial instruments) includes information in relation to the financial instruments for which
their carrying amount coincides with their fair value and provides a description of the valuation techniques and input data used

to measure fair value.

Details of the carrying amount of hedging instruments, as well as the nominal amounts of hedging financial derivatives in the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2022 and 2021, distinguishing between risk

category for each kind of hedge, are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Carrying amount Notional amount

Total

31 December 2022 Assets Liabilities hedges
Fair value hedges 13,804 1,032 204,111
Interest rate 13,804 1,032 204,111

Otc options = =

Otc other 13,804 1,032 204,111

Organised market options = =
Organised market other = =
Foreign exchange and gold = =
Otc options = =
Otc other = =
Organised market options = =
Organised market other = =
Credit = =
Credit default swap = =
Credit spread options = =
Total return swaps = =
Other = =
Commodity - -
Other = =

Cash flow hedges 5,376 - 257,563
Total derivatives - hedge accounting 19,180 1,032 461,674
Of which: otc - credit institutions 19,180 1,032 461,674

Of which: otc - other financial corporations = =
Of which: otc - other - B}

Of which:
sold
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31 December 2021
Fair value hedges
Interest rate
Otc options
Otc other
Organised market options
Organised market other
Foreign exchange and gold
Otc options
Otc other
Organised market options
Organised market other
Credit
Credit default swap
Credit spread options
Total return swaps
Other
Commodity
Other
Cash flow hedges

Total derivatives - hedge accounting
Of which: otc - credit institutions

Of which: otc - other financial corporations

Of which: otc - other

Thousands of Euros

Carrying amount

Notional amount

Assets
538
538

538

2,417
2,955
2,955

Liabilities
4,757
3,909
3,909

848

848

4,757
4,757

Total Of which:
hedges sold

211,536 =
83,654 =
83,654 =

27,882 =

27,882 =

100,000 =
100,000 =

242,804 =
454,340 =
354,340 =

100,000 =




12. Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Details, by company, of Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at 31 December 2022 and 2021 in the

accompanying consolidated statements of financial position are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2022
Company name Investment Impairment Cost Total
Medipatrimonia Invest, SL 51.00% - 2,437 2,437
Sigma M. Partners, LTD 49.80% - 791 791
Other companies 100.00% - 61 61
s 3,289 3,289

2021
Company name Investment Impairment Cost Total
Medipatrimonia Invest, SL 51.00% - 2,233 2,233
Sigma M. Partners, LTD 49.80% - 857 857
Other companies 100.00% - 48 48
- 3,138 3,138

The Andbank Group fully consolidates subsidiaries, with the exception of Medipatrimonia Invest, SL and Sigma M. Partners, LTD,

which are consolidated using the equity method.

13. Tangible assets

A breakdown of items included in Tangible assets during 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment for own use
Rights-of-use

Investment property

31/12/22

104,837
21,940
82,897

13,632
118,469

Thousands of Euros

31/12/21

114,823
22,169
92,654

16,728
131,551

The right-of-use corresponds mainly to the lease of premises where some of the Andbank Group companies’ offices are located,

as well as the Business Centre.

=a. Movement in tangible assets

A breakdown of tangible assets, based on the nature of the items included therein, is as follows:

Annual Report 2022

Financial statements Andbank Group

73



74

31/12/21 Additions Disposals
Cost
For operating activities
Land = = =
Buildings 4,866 407 -
Furniture 9,887 - -
Installations 25,498 2,569 (1,314)
It equipment 34,826 2,031 (173)
Vehicles 1,186 118 -
Under construction 892 = =
Rights-of-use 121,389 4,623 (5,974)
Subtotal 198,544 9,748 (7,461)
For non-operating activities
Land = : =
Buildings 1,135 - -
Installations 886 = =
It equipment 104 - -
Furniture 36 : =
Vehicles 402 = =
Investment property 17,113 2,365 (7,270)
Subtotal 19,676 2,365 (7,270)
Accumulated depreciation
For operating activities
Buildings (3,891) (130) -
Furniture (8,370) (123) =
Installations (16,253) (2,273) 906
It equipment (26,498) (1,463) 154
Vehicles (705) (238) =
Rights-of-use (28,736) (13,182) 5,103
Subtotal (84,453) (17,409) 6,163
For non-operating activities
Buildings (394) (47) -
Fixtures (899) (1) -
IT equipment (103) - -
Furniture (33) = =
Operating leases (402) - -
Investment property (385) (80) 301
Subtotal (2,216) (128) 301
Net balance 131,551 (5.424) (8,267)




Thousands of Euros

Transfers to/from
non-current assets Other Exchange Other
held for sale transfers gains/losses movements 31/12/2022
= = = = 5,273
= = = = 9,887
(1,115) 3,302 = = 28,940
(105) 679 - = 37,258
= = = = 1,304
= = = = 892
(968) 3,347 - - 122,417
(2,188) 7,328 S = 205,971
= = = = 1,135
= = = = 886
= = = = 104
= = = = 36
- - - - 402
1,588 = - = 13,796
1,588 - - - 16,359
- - - - (4,021)
- - - - (8,493)
557 (3,302) - - (20,365)
10 (679) - - (28,476)
- - - - (943)
642 (3,347) = = (39,520)
1,209 (7,328) - = (101,818)
= = = = (441)
. - = - (900)
B - . - (103)
= = = = (33)
- - - - (402)
- : - - (164)
- - - - (2,043)
609 = 3 = 118,469

Annual Report 2022

Financial statements Andbank Group

75



76

31/12/2020 Additions Disposals
Cost
For operating activities
Land = = =
Buildings 4,834 32 -
Furniture 10,079 23 (215)
Installations 24,340 3,375 (2,217)
It equipment 34,512 773 (504)
Vehicles 2,015 355 (1,184)
Under construction 665 351 =
Rights-of-use 118,705 9,441 (4,623)
Subtotal 195,150 14,350 (8,743)
For non-operating activities
Land = : =
Buildings 1,135 - -
Installations 886 = =
It equipment 104 - -
Furniture 36 : =
Vehicles 402 = =
Investment property 13,110 514 (823)
Subtotal 15,673 514 (823)
Accumulated depreciation
For operating activities
Buildings (3,891) - -
Furniture (8,479) (106) 215
Installations (15,969) (2,416) 2,132
It equipment (25,677) (1,323) 502
Vehicles (1,524) (224) 1,043
Rights-of-use (21,537) (13,206) 4,619
Subtotal (77,077) (17,275) 8,511
For non-operating activities
Buildings (350) (44) -
Fixtures (904) - -
IT equipment (103) - -
Furniture (33) = =
Operating leases (402) - -
Investment property (387) (200) 202
Subtotal (2,179) (244) 202
Net balance 131,567 (2,655) (853)

At 31 December 2022 these include fully depreciated tangible assets amounting to Euros 46,817 thousand.



Transfers to/from
non-current assets
held for sale

Other
transfers

Exchange
gains/losses

Other
movements

Thousands of Euros

31/12/2021

124

(124)

4,866
9,887
25,498
34,826
1,186
892
121,389
198,544

4,312
4,312

1,135
886
104

36

402
17,113
19,676

1,388
1,388

(3,891)
(8,370)
(16,253)
(26,498)
(705)
(28,736)
(84,453)

(394)
(899)
(103)
(33)
(402)
(385)
(2,216)

4,312

(820)

131,551
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During 2022 and 2021 no interest or exchange differences corresponding to fixed assets have been capitalised.
At 31 December 2022 all these items remain under ownership of the Bank and are used for its activity.

With express authorisation granted by the AFA on 9 December 2008, the Andbank Group revalued the carrying amount of the
buildings housing its headquarters and network of branches with effective date 30 November 2008. Every two years, through
an appraisal conducted by an independent expert, the aforementioned assets are tested to determine whether their market value
is higher than their carrying amount, the appropriate provisions being recognised where this is not the case. At 31 December
2022 it has not been necessary to revalue the carrying amount of buildings used in operations.

sh. Investment property

Tangible assets include an amount of Euros 13,632 thousand classified as investment property of the Andbank Group, which
correspond to buildings under development or lease. In addition, there are no contractual purchase, construction or development
obligations on the investment property held at 31 December 2022.

14. Intangible assets

=a. Goodwill

A breakdown of the balance and movement in this item of the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position, by
company, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Exchange
31/12/21 Additions gains/losses Transfers 31/12/22
Cost 160,899 = 3,097 (18,321) 145,675
Accumulated impairment (13,007) - - - (13,007)
147,892 - 3,097 (18,321) 132,668
Thousands of Euros
31/12/20 Additions gai):/:lrrsggz Transfers 31/12/21
Cost 158,307 = 2,592 = 160,899
Accumulated impairment - (13,007) - - (13,007)
158,307 (13,007) 2,592 - 147,892

Details of goodwill, based on the cash generating unit (hereinafter CGU) to which the goodwill has been allocated, are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2022 2021
e
Andbank Monaco S.A M. 11,347 11,347
Andbank Wealth Management LLC 1,909 1,800
Banco Andbank (Brasil), S.A. - 16,380
Andbank Corretora de Seguros de Vida Ltda 609 545
Columbus de México, SA de CV 4,268 3,721
Quest Capital Advisers Agente de Valores, SA 10,715 9,766
Sigma Investment House Ltd. 7,502 8,015
Total Goodwill 132,668 147,892

No increase in goodwill due to acquisitions has arisen in 2022 and 2021.

As mentioned in note 3 a), Andbank signed an agreement with Creditas Financial Holding for the sale of the investee Banco
Andbank (Brasil) and its subsidiaries. Therefore, during 2022 goodwill recognised by Banco Andbank (Brasil), S.A. as a result of
this agreement has been reclassified as Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale (note 17 b) - Non-
current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale).



The value of the goodwill associated with Andbank Brasil
amounts to Euros 18,321 thousand at 31 December 2022.
Given the sale and purchase agreement signed with Creditas
Financial Holding, the Group uses the value of this transaction
to measure the recoverable amount of this asset and does not
identify any impairment associated therewith.

sb. Impairment testing

For the purpose of testing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives for impairment, Group cash generating
units (CGU) have been allocated based on the country
of operation.

The Andbank Group has goodwill generated by cash generating
units located in countries with currencies other than the Euro
(mainly in Brazil, USA, Israel, Mexico and Uruguay) and
consequently, exchange differences are generated on
conversion to Euros, at the closing exchange rate.

In accordance with IAS 36, the Andbank Group carries out
yearly testing of the potential impairment of goodwill with
regard to its recoverable amount. This testing requires
identifying the cash generating units, which are the Andbank
Group's smallest groups of identifiable assets that generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. The carrying amount of each cash
generating unit is determined by taking into consideration the
carrying amount of all assets and liabilities, the group of
independent legal entities comprising the cash generating unit,
together with the corresponding goodwill.

This carrying amount to be recovered from the cash generating
unit can be compared with its recoverable amount in order to
determine whether it has been impaired. The Andbank Group's
directors evaluate the existence of any indication that could be
considered as evidence of impairment of the cash generating
unit, by reviewing information, which includes future dividends
distributable in a period of five years, in which:

= The annual growth rate of managed assets is adjusted to the
growth observed in each business unit in recent years and to
the growth expectations according to the future plans,
together with an improvement in market expectations.

= The annual growth rate of the gross margin arises from the
average growth of assets under management for the period,
as well as their return. The return is adapted to each business
unit based on the growth observed in recent years, as well as
market expectations, which are more conservative in the Euro
zone due to the European monetary framework and the high
level of competition in the sector.

Lastly, the annual growth rate of operating expenses is in line
with the growth observed in previous years and the
expectations of inflation and growth in business support
expenses for each unit.

The Andbank Group determines the recoverable amount by
calculating the value in use by applying the discount method of
distributable dividends. The value of the cash generating units

is obtained based on the present value of the dividends that
are expected to be generated by this CGU in the future.

This approach analyses the entity from a dynamic standpoint,
considering the business as an asset with the capacity to
generate future dividends.

On a going concern basis, it is estimated that the income
approach is the method that most efficiently includes the result
of the valuation of all factors affecting the value of a business.

The main assumptions used to calculate future distributable
dividends are:

i. projected results, based on the financial budgets approved
by the Andbank Group directors, that cover a period of five
years (unless there is justification for a longer time horizon),

ii. discount rates determined as the cost of capital taking into
consideration the risk-free rate plus a risk premium in accor-
dance with the market and business in which they operate.
This capital discount rate must take into consideration the
time value of money, as well as the market risk and other en-
tity-specific risks, and

constant growth rates to extrapolate results to perpetuity,
that do not exceed the medium-long term growth rate for the
market in which the CGU in question operates.

The main assumptions taken into consideration when
determining the recoverable amount at 2022 reporting date,
of the most significant CGU that have been valued by
discounting distributable dividends, are as follows:

2022
Ke G

"Andbank Espafia Banca Privada
SAU. o o
(formerly WealthPrivat Bank 1220 o0
SAU)
Andbank Monaco S.A.M. 10.54% 3.00%
Andbank Wealth Management LLC 10.69% 3.70%
Andbank Corretora de Seguros de @ 8
Vida Ltda 15.02% 5.02%
Columbus de México, SA de CV 14.70% 5.20%
Quest Capital Advisers Agente de 15.80% 6.80%
Valores, SA
Sigma Investment House Ltd. 11.05% 5.42%

Sensitivity analysis

The Andbank Group has performed a sensitivity analysis,
consisting of adjusting the discount rate by +/- 50 basis points
and the growth to perpetuity rate by +/- basis points.

The sensitivity analysis concludes that all the scenarios
defined therein reflect that the carrying amount of the CGU is
lower than the recoverable amount.
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=c. Other intangible assets

A breakdown and movement of items included in Intangible assets during 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

At 31 December 2022 31/12/21 Additions Disposals
Cost

IT software and applications 110,961 3,657 (1,659)
Multi-owned assets 834 = =

Intangible assets in progress - - -

Other 104,131 3,855 (103)
215,926 7,512 (1,762)

Accumulated amortisation
IT software and applications (63,505) (9,309) 1,962
Multi-owned assets (710) (11) -

Intangible assets in progress - - -

Other (26,826) (3,546) =
(91,047) (12,866) 1,962
Accumulated impairment (1,909) (152) -
Net balance 122,970 (5,506) 200
At 31 December 2021 31/12/20 Additions Disposals
Cost
IT software and applications 101,736 3,853 (617)
Multi-owned assets 834 s =

Intangible assets in progress = = =

Other 101,737 8,544 (159)
204,307 12,397 (776)

Accumulated amortisation
IT software and applications (54,523) (8,564) 1,172
Multi-owned assets (705) (11) -

Intangible assets in progress = = =

Other (23,658) (3,198) 30

(78,886) (11,773) 1,202
Accumulated impairment (1,863) (55) 9
Net balance 123,558 569 435

At 31 December 2022 these include fully amortised intangible assets amounting to Euros 46,523 thousand.
Others under Intangible assets include computer software under development amounting to Euros 4,853 thousand (Euros
26,525 thousand at 31 December 2021), as part of the Bank's technological transformation project (Newton Project), which

will start to be amortised when the development work has been completed and the software is in use.

At 31 December 2022 all these items remain under ownership of the Bank and are used for its activity.



Thousands of Euros
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Transfers to/from
non-current assets held Other Exchange Other
for sale transfers gains/losses movements 31/12/22
(5,893) 23,289 = = 130,355
- - - - 834
(5,262) (20,771) = = 81,850
(11,155) 2,518 - - 213,039
2575 (516) = = (68,793)
- - - - (727)
- (2,002) - - (32,374)
2,575 (2,518) - - (101,894)
- - - - (2,061)
(8,580) - - - 109,084
Thousands of Euros
Transfers to/from
non-current assets held Other Exchange Other
for sale transfers gains/losses movements 31/12/21
5,989 = = = 110,961
- - - . 834
(5,989) = = (2) 104,131
. ; ; 2 215,926
- o - (1,590) (63,505)
: : : : (716)
- - = - (26,826)
- - - (1,590) (91,047)
R - - - (1,909)
] : - (1,592) 122,970
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15. Tax assets and liabilities

Details of tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21
Tax assets
Current tax assets 5,841 4,762
Deferred tax assets 29,004 27,592
34,845 32,354
Tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities 5,834 5,067
Deferred tax liabilities 9,085 8,429
14,919 13,496

16. Other assets and liabilities

A breakdown of the asset and liability items of the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2022 and 31

December 2021 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21
Other assets

Inventories 14 14
Other assets 101,007 92,606
Prepayments and accrued income 39,033 42,218
Operations in progress 7,295 8,196
Other items 54,679 42,192
101,021 92,620
Thousands of Euros
31/12/22 31/12/21

Other liabilities
Other liabilities 97,869 83,312
Accrued expenses and deferred income 13,797 15,662
Operations in progress 9,139 11,366
Other items 74,933 56,284
97,869 83,312




17. Non-current assets and liabilities and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Details of non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are

as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Foreclosed assets 9,588 13,377
Other non-current assets held for sale 200,376 3,234
209,964 16,611

Thousands of Euros

31/12/22 31/12/21

Foreclosed liabilities = =
Other non-current liabilities held for sale 118,266 1,508
118,266 1,508

sa. Foreclosed assets

A breakdown and movement of this item in the accompanying statements of financial position are as follows:

Transfers to

Thousands of Euros

investment Revaluation
At 31 December 2022 31/12/21 Additions Disposals property reserves Other 31/12/22
Cost
Property, plant and equipment
From foreclosures 31,732 307 (4,641) (4,850) - - 22,548
Other - = - = - = -
31,732 307 (4,641) (4,850) S 3 22,548

Impairment losses
Property, plant and equipment
From foreclosures (19,918) - 2,254 3,262 - (122) (14,524)
Other 1,563 = = = - = 1,563

(18,355) = 2,254 3,262 3 (122) (12,961)
Net balance 13,377 307 (2,387) (1,588) S (122) 9,587
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Thousands of Euros

Transfers to

investment Revaluation
At 31 December 2021 31/12/20 Additions Disposals property reserves Other 31/12/22
Cost
Property, plant and equipment
From foreclosures 40,062 562 (4,617) (4,312) 37 - 31,732
Other - = - = - = -
40,062 562 (4,617) (4,312) 37 3 31,732

Impairment losses
Property, plant and equipment
From foreclosures (21,610) (208) 1,934 - (34) - (19,918)
Other 1,563 = = = - = 1,563

(20,047) (208) 1,934 = (34) = (18,355)
Net balance 20,015 354 (2,683) (4,312) 3 = 13,377

Transfers to investment property reflect a change in the
purpose of the assets, which are destined for property
development or the obtaining of returns and gains.

The fair value of non-current assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

The Andbank Group has an active policy of disposing of all non-
current assets and disposal groups which have been classified
as held for sale, with the appraisals obtained being higher than
their carrying amounts.

Foreclosures and recoveries

A classification by category and by average permanence in the

31/12/22 31/12/21 portfolio of non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale is as follows:

Land 22,826 25,262
Premises 1,117 1,452 Thousands of Euros
31/12/22 31/12/21

Car parks 758 875
Up to 12 months - 354

Storage rooms 82 80
Mol 2084 5797 From 1 to 2 years 229 51
26,867 33,466 From 2 to 5 years 4,133 4,825
More than 5 years 5,226 8,147
The fair value of real estate assets classified as non-current 9,588 13,377

assets held for sale are classified as Level 2 based on the fair
value hierarchy. Foreclosed assets are appraised periodically
and are recognised as the lower of fair value less costs to sell
and carrying amount. From the analyses carried out it can be
concluded that the market values of the assets do not
significantly differ from their carrying amounts. The main
independent sources used to value buildings and land are
Intervalor, Peritand, Peritaxa and T.A.l.

The appraisal companies chosen to appraise the foreclosed
assets have been selected based on their benchmark appraisal
methodology using the valuation standards set out in Spanish
Order EC0O/805/2003. The appraisal companies mainly use
the comparative valuation method.

Details, by type of asset, of the profit and loss recognised in
2022 and 2021 due to the sale of non-current assets and
disposal groups which have been classified as held for sale are
as follows:



Thousands of Euros

2022 2021

Profits Losses Profits Losses

Apartments 419 (24) 596 (133)
Car parks = = 67 =
Premises 96 = = =
Land 90 = 519 =
Adjustments due to depreciation - - - (47)
605 (24) 1,182 (180)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021 the Andbank Group has no
liabilities associated with non-current assets and disposal
groups which have been classified as held for sale.

sh. Other non-current assets held for sale
Other non-current assets held for sale and Other non-current
liabilities held for sale for 2022 correspond to the transaction

described in note 3 a).

As mentioned in this note, Andbank signed an agreement with
Creditas Financial Holding for the sale of the investee Banco

Thousands of Euros

Andbank (Brasil), SA and its subsidiaries. The asset and liability
balances for the companies for sale have been reclassified to
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale - Other non-current assets held for sale and Liabilities
included in disposal groups classified as held for sale - Other
non-current liabilities held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2022.

Details of the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Banco

Andbank (Brasil), SA, companies for sale at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

ASSETS 31/12/22 LIABILITIES 31/12/22
onhsefl, g:;l;:?jlgzgizii; central banks and 164 E(i)nsincial liabilities measured at amortised 108,959
Cash balances at central banks 162 Deposits 108,959
Other demand deposits 2 Fair vallue ghapges of the hef:iged itemsin 107
Financial assets at fair value through other o5 220 portfolio with interest rate risk hedge

comprehensive income ! Provisions 1,136
Equity instruments 619 Tax liabilities 422
Debt securities 24,601 Current tax liabilities 422
Financial assets at amortised cost 132,063 Other liabilities 7,642
Debt securities 12,946 Total liabilities 118,266
Loans and advances 119,117

Derivatives - Hedge accounting 8

Tangible assets 988

Property, plant and equipment 988

Int